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Through superior service, safely provide reliable
and competitively priced energy.
Powering Alaska’s future.
3

Chugach Electric Association was incorporated

in Alaska, March 1, 1948, with funding under the

Rural Electrification Act of 1936, as amended. In
B - 1991 Chugach refinanced and paid off its federal
2o debt, leaving the REA program. Chugach remains

a cooperative and ranks among the largest of the

more than 900 electric cooperatives in the nation.

It is a policy of Chugach Electric Association, Inc.,
to recruit, hire, train, promote and compensate
persons without regard to race, color, religion, na-
tional origin, sex, marital status, pregnancy, par-
enthood, physical or mental disability, veteran’s
status, age or any other classification protected
by applicable federal, state or local law.
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On Jan. 7, Chugach set a new all-time sys-
tem peak load of 489.54 megawatts in the
hour ending at 7 p.m., when the temperature
at its International Station was minus 13
degrees.

Chugach expanded its Smart Power program
in January. The program offered jointly with
Municipal Light & Power and Matanuska
Electric Association, promoted a variety of
compact fluorescent lamps for customers to
purchase at a discount, as well as quarterly
workshops.

In April Chugach members began seeing the
initial impact of falling oil and associated
commodity prices. Chugach filed with the
Regulatory Commission of Alaska seeking
approval to lower rates by slightly more than
5 percent. Members also saw a slightly dif-
ferent bill that broke the fuel adjustment into
two categories (fuel and purchased power) to
more clearly delineate the different costs.

Chugach held its 2009 Annual Membership
Meeting April 30. Two hundred thirty-one
members registered for the event. About 16
percent of the 66,034 Chugach members of
record voted. Elizabeth “Pat” Kennedy and
Jim Nordlund were elected to 3-year terms
on the board of directors. The members
approved three proposed bylaw amendments
that covered housekeeping, the number of
election committee members and director
meeting attendance

Chugach members registering at the
2009 Annual Meeting and Election

The Alaska Department of Labor and
Workforce Development named Chugach an

YEAR IN

“Apprenticeship Employer of the Year” at a
ceremony April 30. In the course of a year
Chugach usually employs 8-10 apprentices
who are training to become electrical line-
men through a statewide program run by
the Alaska Joint Electrical Apprenticeship
Training Trust.

Chugach was certified as a 10-year Tree
Line USA utility in June. The certification is
awarded by the national Arbor Day Founda-
tion to recognize outstanding right of way
and vegetation management practices and
community involvement.

A new natural gas contract between Chugach

and ConocoPhillips was submitted to the
RCA in May and subsequently approved in
August. The seven-year contract is designed
to fill 100 percent of Chugach’s unmet needs

through April 2011, and a portion of its needs

for several years after that.

In September Chugach and other organiza-
tions in the Railbelt began making plans to
deal with a potential shortfall of natural gas.
The group identified an overall action plan
called Energy Watch, to be used in the event
of a gas delivery problem. The plan included
tools the utilities can use in cutting back,
and asking customers to help through using
energy wisely or scaling back on usage.

In October a Request for Qualifications was
issued seeking input from firms interested

in bidding on the EPC contract to “engineer,
procure and construct” the new Southcentral
Power Project. The SPP is a 183-megawatt
project that will be jointly owned by Chugach
and Municipal Light & Power. The EPC
responses are expected by March 2010, with
construction expected to begin in early 2011.

The board considered and in November
approved using a method called “Simplified
Rate Filing” to adjust energy and demand
rates. The SRF process is intended to allow
modest rate changes while avoiding the
undue expense of a general rate case.

REVIEW

In November Chugach energized a new sec-
tion of transmission line constructed along
0’Malley Road between the Alaska Railroad
track and Elmore Road. The line connected
the South Anchorage Loop and completed a
series of projects begun 8 years earlier. July
marked the start of the work along 0’Malley
Road, the last of the projects designed to
strengthen the regional transmission system
and help improve reliability for customers.

New 138-kilovolt transmission line
along 0'Malley road

Following the introduction of legislation by
the governor to create the Greater Railbelt
Energy and Transmission Corp., the six
Railbelt electric utilities worked together
throughout the remainder of the year on a
draft committee substitute bill for consid-
eration during the 2010 legislative session.
Each of the governing bodies was repre-
sented on the Joint Utility Task Force formed
to work with administration energy advisors
to create a bill that could create an organi-
zation to meet regional generation and trans-
mission needs in the coming years.

In December past and long-term retail mem-
bers shared in a $1.7 million capital credit
retirement for a portion of credits earned in
1989. Chugach’s wholesale members also
shared a $1.7 million capital credit retire-
ment.
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The governance bodies of the six electric
utilities of the Railbelt have spent much

of this past year seeking a way to work
together toward common goals. We all are
interested in the same things on behalf

of our customers — reliable power at a
reasonable cost. The challenge we face is
how best to achieve those goals.

In the view of Chugach, it’s by working to-
gether. Cooperation is good for customers.

The Railbelt covers a pretty good-sized
area, with the service territories of the utili-
ties stretching about 600 miles. But even
though it is home to about three-fourths of
the state’s population, there aren't enough
customers in the Railbelt to pay for all of
the possible power projects being dis-
cussed. Somehow we must find a way to
evaluate and prioritize ideas, and to invest
our customers’ dollars wisely.

Board Chair

The GRETC Task Force worked throughout
the interim. Gov. Parnell has committed the
gfforts of his senior energy advisors and
leaders of the AEA to the effort since taking
office last summer.

We emerged with a substitute bill that went

back before legislative committees in March

2010. It provides a framework for Rail-
belt utilities to work

‘Somehow we must find a way to
evaluate and prioritize ideas, and to
invest our customers dollars wisely.”

together and with

the state to develop
projects, while offering
each utility the oppor-
tunity to independently

Midway through the 2009 legislative ses-
sion, Gov. Palin’s administration introduced
legislation to create GRETC — the Greater
Railbelt Energy and Transmission Corp. The
idea for GRETC resulted from a 2008 study
of the Railbelt led by the Alaska Energy
Authority. The legislature had funded the
study seeking a way to rationalize the ef-
forts of the six utilities.

The legislative session ended with GRETC
bills in the respective energy committees
of the House and Senate — and with a
commitment of the governing bodies of the
Railbelt electric utilities to work together
and with the administration to try to shape
a bill that would work for all concerned.

pursue activities as
their governing bodies
see fit. As the legislative session progresses
we are optimistic about the GRETC legisla-
tion and the organization it will create. When
utilities work together, customers benefit.

It’s especially important to work together

on projects. Chugach and Municipal Light &
Power have been working together for some
time on construction of a new gas-fired,
combined-cycle power plant in Anchorage.

By partnering on the Southcentral Power Proj-
ect, each utility gains a valuable generation
asset at a lower cost. The SPP is an example
of the benefit to customers from utilities
working together.

We think this example can be expanded to

other utilities too. Together we can best
address regional concerns for planning,
transmission, incorporation of renewable
projects and the development of generation
facilities.

In the long-term, Chugach would prefer to
have a generation portfolio less dependent
upon fossil fuels. Currently about 90 percent
of the kilowatt-hours we sell annually comes
from burning natural gas, with the other 10
percent coming from hydro power. In 2008
the board resolved to reverse those ratios of
fossil-fueled-to-renewable generation over
time, and recently has been considering the
role other alternative forms of generation
could play. We'd like to see additional signifi-
cant hydro projects developed in the Railbelt,
but realize that is an undertaking that will
take the combined effort of multiple utilities
and the state. GRETC provides a model for
that cooperation, and a way ahead.

The Chugach board remains committed to
the idea of cooperating with other utilities to
better serve our customers.
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Fuel is the largest single expense for
Chugach and its members, and is cur-
rently the issue that occupies a great deal
of our attention. There’s a reason for that.
Chugach uses natural gas to generate most
of the kilowatt-hours it sells each year. The
long-term gas contracts that have provided
a steady supply of reasonably priced fuel for
the past two decades are nearing their end.
Chugach will probably use the last volumes
of gas from its old contracts sometime in
2011.

We were successful in taking a new gas sup-
ply contract before the Regulatory Commis-
sion of Alaska in the past year. The contract
with ConocoPhillips will provide gas for 100
percent of our needs into 2011 and a portion
for some years after that. We have been in
negotiations for additional volumes that will
fill in part of the gap, and hope to conclude
transactions in the near future that will give
us a bit more breathing room.

As the Cook Inlet Basin gas fields age, our
concern is not only about gas volumes, but
also deliverability. In Alaska, the demand
for fuel by electric and gas utilities is higher
in the winter than it is in the summer. This
variation creates a challenge for the produc-
ers. Itis imperative that a sufficient supply
of fuel be delivered at the rate needed by
utilities to meet the point-in-time demands
of customers.

Gas storage is one way to address concerns
about deliverability. Chugach has joined
ENSTAR and Municipal Light & Power in a
project to secure storage from a third party
provider. Arrangements are not yet complet-
ed, but we are hopeful that we will have gas
storage for utilities within the next two years.

For the past two years Chugach has
promoted a state-developed, Cook Inlet Re-
source Management Plan. In 2009, Chugach,
ENSTAR and ML&P commissioned a study of
Cook Inlet natural gas. We weren't just in-
terested in how much was left — we wanted

CEO

to know what level of activity would be
required to meet our needs in the coming
decade and what the cost might be. Our
consultant concluded that reserves could
provide another 10-years supply, but that
it will take a sustained successful drilling
program to ensure delivery. The study also
estimated that the cost of drilling in the
next decade could be two to three times as
expensive as in the past 10 years, resulting
in higher fuel prices.

In our multiple and continuing efforts

to conserve fuel, we have moved the
Southcentral Power Project forward. In
addition to conserving fuel this project will
provide Chugach a transition plan that more
gffectively incorporates future alternative
generation without losing thermal efficien-
cies and avoids substantial investment in
existing older technology generating units.
The SPP is a shared project with ML&P. In
the past year we made significant progress
in the areas of engineering, procurement,
land acquisition and permitting, and remain
on track for operation of the efficient,
combined-cycle plant by 2013. The SPP
will extend our Cook Inlet gas supply and
lower the fuel surcharge for customers by
using 25 percent less gas per kilowatt-hour.

[t's not just the utilities that are concerned
about deliverability. Our concerns are
shared by the leaders of the Municipality
of Anchorage, the Kenai Peninsula Borough

and the Matanuska-Susitna Borough. They
joined with the utilities to develop a program
called Energy Watch to help prepare custom-
ers for a possible request to curtail demand
in the event of a shortfall. While no call for
curtailment was necessary in the winter of
2009-2010, the publicity of the program
helped lay a foundation for future action and
elevated the public discussion of this very
important issue.

Management of Cook Inlet gas will remain a
critical issue for the state, Railbelt utilities
and regional leaders for years to come.

Gas isn't our only issue, of course. Everyday
the Chugach work force strives to profes-
sionally deliver safe and reliable electric
service to our member-owners. Chugach
recently concluded negotiations with the three
bargaining units represented by the Interna-
tional Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local
1547. For the first time, employees ratified
agreements recognizing that future wage
increases have a connection to the financial
performance of the cooperative.

| am proud of the work Chugach has done in
the past year on behalf of the members we
are here to serve.
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THE EXECUTIVE STAFF

Seated from left, Dave Smith, Sr. Vice President, Admin-
istration; Brad Evans, Chief Executive Officer and Lee
Thibert, Sr. Vice President, Strategic Planning & Corporate
Affairs. Standing from left are Paul Risse, Sr. Vice
President, Power Supply; Mike Cunningham, Sr. Vice Presi-
dent, Finance & Chief Financial Officer; Ed Jenkin, Vice
President, Power Delivery; Tyler Andrews, Vice President,
Human Resources and Mark Johnson, Corporate Counsel.

CHugAcH ELecTRIC AssociaTion, INC. I




POWER SALES

AT A GLANCE

REBECCA LOGAN,
Chairman

Rebecca Logan is president and chief
executive officer for the Associated Builders
and Contractors, Alaska Chapter. She was
appointed to fill a board vacancy in 2007 and
elected to the board in 2008. Logan serves
on the board’s Operations, Finance and Audit
committees. She is on the Northwest Public
Power Association Board of Trustees, serves
as Chugach’s Alaska Power Association
Resolutions Committee representative, and is
chair of the Joint Utility Task Force.

JiMm NORDLUND,
Vice Chairman

Jim Nordlund is Alaska state director of USDA
Rural Development, as well as the owner of
Nordlund Carpentry, LLC. He was elected to
the board in 2006 and re-elected in 2009.
Nordlund is a former legislator and state
director of Public Assistance. He currently
serves on the board’s Operations Committee.
He is a National Rural Electric Cooperative
Association Credentialed Cooperative Direc-
tor.

ELizABETH “PAT” KENNEDY,
Director

Pat Kennedy is a retired attorney who is
state-licensed as a private guardian and
conservator. She was elected to the board

in 2009. Kennedy currently serves as the
vice chair of the board’s Finance Committee,
serves on the Audit Committee and is the
board liaison to Chugach'’s Election Commit-
tee. She is a National Rural Electric Coopera-
tive Association Credentialed Cooperative
Director and has completed board leadership
training.

Seated from left: Jim Nordlund, Vice Chair; Rebecca Logan, Chair and PJ. Hill, Treasurer.
Standing from left: Janet Reiser, Alex Gimarc, Secretary; Pat Kennedy and Elizabeth

Vazquez.
P.J. HiLt, ALEX GIMARC,
Treasurer Secretary

PJ. Hill is a retired professor from the

School of Business and Public Policy at the
University of Alaska Anchorage. He is also
an economic consultant and a commercial
fisherman. He was elected to the board in
2007. Hill chairs the board’s Finance and
Audit committees. He is a National Rural
Electric Cooperative Association Credentialed
Cooperative Director.

JANET REISER,
Director

Janet Reiser is an engineer and managing
partner of Salus Management Services and
chief operating officer of Sea Lion Interna-

tional. She was elected to the board in 2008.

She serves as chair of the board’s Opera-
tions Committee, is the NRECA alternate
voting delegate and the board liaison to the
Renewable Energy Committee and the South-
central Power Project.

Alex Gimarc is a systems programmer with
the Municipality of Anchorage. He was
elected to the board in 2007. Gimarc cur-
rently serves as the vice chair of the board’s
Operations Committee, and is on the board’s
Finance and Audit committees. He is also
Chugach’s representative to the Joint Action
Agency and the Alaska Power Association,
and serves on the Railbelt Utility Task Force.

EL1zABETH VAZQUEZ,
Director

Elizabeth Vazquez is an attorney with the
State of Alaska and has a Master’s of Busi-
ness Administration. She was elected to

the board in 2005 and re-elected in 2008.
Vazquez serves on the board’s Operations
and Finance committees and is the board
liaison to Chugach'’s Bylaws Committee. She
is the NRECA voting delegate and the alter-
nate voting delegate for CFC. Vazquez is a
National Rural Electric Cooperative Associa-
tion Credentialed Cooperative Director and
has earned her Board Leadership Certificate.
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As a cooperative, our bottom line, or rev-
enues in excess of current costs, is called
margins. Chugach ended 2009 with $5.7
million in margins. This was slightly down
from our margin performance in 2008 of $6.4
million; however, it was in line with our 2009
budget, which projected margins of $5.8
million. While the final result was not up to
the level of 2008, it did reflect the impact of
tight cost control in the face of decreased
kilowatt-hour sales. The implementation of
protective measures in response to the threat
of ashfall from Mount Redoubt that contin-
ued as additional conservation measures
was a significant factor to the decrease in
sales. We also continued to promote our
Smart Power program, which is designed to
help change customer habits and promote
gfficient-energy products.

Total energy sales to retail, wholesale and
economy energy customers amounted to
2,535,676 megawatt-hours in 2009. These
sales, along with other revenue, produced
total revenues of $290,247,308 for the year.
This compared to 2,785,705 MWh of energy
and $288,292,112 of revenue in 2008.

While retail and wholesale sales were down
in 2009, the expiration of our contract with
Golden Valley Electric Association, an econo-
my energy customer, had a significant impact
on the decrease in sales from 2008. We
executed an agreement in the fourth quarter

Treasurer

of 2009 with GVEA, which is also expected to
generate economy energy revenue in 2010.
Even though sales were down
in 2009 compared to 2008,
our total revenue increased
due to higher purchased power
costs included in revenue and
recovered through the fuel and
purchased power process.

Chugach exceeded its Indenture of Trust
financial performance covenant of a 1.10
Margins for Interest/ Interest (MFI/1) ratio.
The indenture mandates certain financial
performance standards we must meet in
order to provide bond investors comfort with
their long-term investment in Chugach. Our
actual MFI/I for 2009 was 1.27.

Chugach maintained the landmark Equity to

Total Capitalization ratio of above 30 percent
that we initially achieved in 2007, and still
returned over $3.4 million of capital credits
to our retail and wholesale members. Main-
tenance of an equity ratio above 30 percent
allows greater flexibility in financial planning
under the terms of our indenture.

In 2009, Chugach began issuing commercial
paper to fund capital expenditures associ-
ated with the Southcental Power Project,

a natural gas-fired generation plant that

is being developed and jointly owned with
Municipal Light & Power. While the commer-
cial paper program has a $300 million limit,

‘Due to a decline in sales in 2009,
Chugach managed expenses to
achieve projected margins.’

as established by the credit facility used to
“backstop” the program, the board approves
the balance to be issued on a quarterly
basis. Through the use of this program, we
were able to decrease interest expense with
substantially lower interest rates, which
ranged from 0.26 to 1.48 percent in 2009.
Chugach had $51.5 million in commercial
paper outstanding at the end of 2009.

I 2009 AnnuAL REPORT

Chugach updated the three bond rating agen-
cies in 2009, who maintained our underlying
long-term ratings of “A-“ and “A3.” Our com-
mercial paper composite rating is “A1/P2.”

Chugach participated in the formation of a
Joint Utility Task Force with the other electric
utilities of the Alaska Railbelt. This task
force was created in an effort to provide the
utilities a venue in collectively reviewing

and providing feedback on the legislation
regarding the Greater Railbelt Energy and
Transmission Corp., in addition to addressing
other issues facing the Railbelt utilities. The
purpose of GRETC is to plan for the financ-
ing, acquisition, construction, ownership,
and operation of necessary electric power
generation and transmission assets and
services that would be necessary to provide
the Railbelt with adequate, reliable, safe
and stable electric power and transmission
services at the lowest feasible long-term
cost. In November 2009, Chugach joined
Matanuska Electric Association and the

City of Seward in issuing a joint resolution

in support of the GRETC concept. Efforts
continued into 2010 with the Chugach Board
of Directors unanimously passing a resolu-
tion in support of House Bill 182, enacting
the establishment of GRETC. The MEA Board
of Directors, GVEA Board of Directors, Homer
Electric Association Board of Directors,

as well as the City Council of Seward also

Conduits were installed for both the new
subtransmission and distribution circuits
along 0'Malley Road.

unanimously passed resolutions in support of
HB 182. This legislation, as well as its coun-
terpart in the Senate (Senate Bill 143), is on
the agenda for the 2010 legislative session.

Chugach expended approximately $37.5
million on total capital expansion and
system improvement projects in 2009. A
significant portion was associated with the
SPP. Chugach executed several agreements
and purchased additional land in 2009. The
major components of the generators, which
were purchased in 2008, are due to arrive
by the end of 2010. We also look forward to
awarding an Engineer, Procure and Construct
contract and executing a steam turbine
purchase agreement in 2010. This effort will
continue through to the successful comple-
tion of the project anticipated in 2013.

We continue to monitor all financial markets
in anticipation of the upcoming 2011 and
2012 refinancing efforts on our publicly
traded long-term debt. We also expect to
convert some of the outstanding commercial
paper balance to long-term debt in the near
future.

Chugach continued to operate and maintain
the system that provides reliable and low-
cost power to our members from Homer to
Fairbanks. To further our efforts, we negoti-
ated a tentative agreement on a long-term

Continuing a holiday tradition, Chugach
donated turkeys to various organizations in
Anchorage.
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fuel supply contract, in addition to a contract
we finalized with ConocoPhillips. We also ex-
tended the current employment agreements
with the International Brotherhood of Electri-
cal Workers for three years, which provides
for wage increases in two of the three years
and are indirectly tied to Chugach’s financial
performance.

Chugach crews replaced a wood structure
broken in a car accident.

Chugach was recognized as a 10-year Tree Line
USA utility in 2009.




INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIrRM’S REPORT

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Chugach Electric Association, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Chugach Electric Association, Inc. as of
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related statements of operations, changes in equities and
margins, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2009. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Chugach Electric Association, Inc. as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2009, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPP LEP

March 4, 2010
Anchorage, Alaska

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2009 and 2008

Utility Plant (notes 1d, 3, 11 and 12):
Electric plant in service
Construction work in progress

Total utility plant
Less accumulated depreciation
Net utility plant

Other property and investments, at cost:
Nonutility property
Special Funds
Investments in associated organizations (note 4)
Total other property and investments

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents, including repurchase agreements
of $4,593,703 in 2009 and $9,639,446 in 2008

Special deposits

Fuel cost under-recovery (note 1n)

Accounts receivable, less provision for doubtful accounts
of $397,815in 2009 and $408,632 in 2008

Materials and supplies

Prepayments

Other current assets
Total current assets

Deferred charges, net (notes 5 and 13)
Total assets

Liabilities, Equities and Margins

Equities and margins (notes 6 and 7):
Memberships
Patronage capital
Other
Total equities and margins

Long-term obligations, excluding current installments (notes 8 and 9):
Bonds payable
National Bank for Cooperatives promissory notes payable
National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation promissory notes payable

Total long-term obligations

Current liabilities:
Current installments of long-term obligations (notes 8 and 9)
Commercial Paper
Promissory notes payable
Short-term obligations
Accounts payable
Consumer deposits
Fuel cost over-recovery (note 1n)
Accrued interest
Salaries, wages and benefits
Fuel
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Deferred compensation

Deferred credits (note 5)
Total liabilities, equities and margins

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2009 2008
$834,467,734 $821,462,475
48,383,610 25,151,072
882,851,344 846,613,547
(420,464,808) (389,002,139)
462,386,536 457,611,408
24,461 24,461
345,792 264,427
12,333,936 12,177,769
12,704,189 12,466,657
3,503,765 7,491,302
125,037 114,930
278,164 11,788,078
32,764,733 33,019,372
29,990,618 28,806,641
1,261,897 1,544,025
246,380 272,351
68,170,594 83,036,705
22,037,407 23,577,199
$565,298,726 $576,691,969

2009 2008
$1,432,054 $1,390,413
144,228,221 142,009,998
10,660,322 10,366,588
156,320,597 163,766,999
270,000,000 270,000,000
37,301,819 41,419,847
0 42,963,659
307,301,819 354,383,506
4,118,028 4,403,653
51,500,000 0
0 2,860,000
0 7,500,000
10,212,105 6,999,140
2,447,140 2,410,980
3,511,422 0
6,067,630 6,158,927
5,956,320 5,481,621
14,658,058 28,494,211
1,234,371 1,666,521
99,705,074 65,975,053
345,792 264,421
1,625,444 2,301,984
$565,298,726 $576,691,969
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statements of Operations Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
209 2008 207 2009 2008 2007
Operating revenues (notes 1m, 2 and 13) $290,247,308 $288,292,112 $257,443919 Cash flows from operating activities:
Assignable margins $5,660,348 $6,411,750 $2,885,256
Operating expenses: ) ) ) } ) ) o
Fuel (note 13) 136.416.761 137,894 553 106,023 734 Adjustments to reconcile assignable margins to net cash provided by operating activities:
Power production 16,406,911 16,718,777 16,171,717 Depreciation 32130434 30829276 29,049,627
Purchased power 35,690,476 31,486,621 33,947,828 Amortization and depreciation cleared to operating expenses 4,755,265 5,029,029 3,376,708
Transmission 5,709,578 5,841,405 6,781,166 Capitalized interest (746,532) (559,090) (891,443)
Distribution 12,740,381 12,398,832 13,716,105 Property losses, net 35,289 2,231 16,748
Consumer accounts 5,259,348 5,396,662 4,899,878 Write-off of inventory and projects 1,461,349 18,000 4,439
Administrative, general and other charges 20,518,688 20,014,239 21,776,968 Investments in associated organizations (156,706) (184,390) (105,872)
Depreciation 32,130,434 30,829,276 29,049,627 ) -
) Changes in assets and liabilities:
Total operating expenses 264,872,577 260,580,365 232,367,023 )
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Interest expense: Accounts receivable 584,825 (1,663,891) 1,544,090
On long-term obligations 20,159,196 21,309,900 24,239,343 Fuel cost under-recovery 11,509,914 (11,788,078) 0
On short-term obligations 1,048,404 1,669,376 90,648 Materials and supplies (1,407,931) (384,553) (2,997,595)
Charged to construction-credit (601,251) (446,479) (617,194) Prepayments/Other assets 298,537 (183,715) 228 145
Net interest expense 20,606,349 22,532,797 23,712,797 Deferred charges (2,522,027) (6,640,741) (2,773,198)
Net operating margins 4,768,382 5,178,950 1,364,099 Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
) . Accounts payable 169,466 (1,673,495) (124,362)
Nonoperating margins: Consumer deposits/Other liabilities (33,945) (4,555) (1,340,345)
'C”te_rteslt '”C;Te conanedhdonds and gi[l)ggg gggigg Qggg Fuel cost over-recovery 3,511,422 (1,596,010) 1,295,443
a‘# ? l‘”e s pat,“’“age Ividends and other Lo e G Accrued interest (91,297) (145,682) (59,491)
A" 2 ”°L‘|°pe”’ Mg Margins o0 T eIy Salaries, wages and benefits 474,699 (472,252) (67,600
SSIgnaDIe margins 0% h 1999 Fel (13,836,153) 6,156,558 6,178,870
Deferred credits 11,219 55,070 16,646
Net cash provided by operating activities 41,808,176 23,205,462 36,236,066
Statements of Changes in Equities and Margins ) -
Investing activities:
Years Ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 Extension and replacement of plant (37,499,061) (29,830,126) (28,483,067)
Other Equities Patronage Net cash used in investing activities (37,499,061) (29,830,126) (28,483,067)
Memberships and Margins Capital Total Financing activities:
Balance, January 1, 2007 $1,297 633 $8,300,847 $141,117,620 $150,716,100 Payments of notes payable (2,860,000 0 0
Assianabl . 0 0 2885256 2885256 Proceeds from short-term obligations 66,998,000 7,500,000 0
ssllgna ¢ marglqs ) L L Proceeds from long-term obligations 0 38,560,006 0
Retirement of capital credits 0 0 (5,289,538) (5,289,538) R ts of short-t blica (22.998,000) 0 0
Unclaimed capital credit retirements 0 681,254 0 681,254 epayments ot short-teri obligations 9%
Memberships and donations received 47380 269,984 0 317,364 Repayments of long-term obligations (47,367,312) (35,303,151) (9,001,795)
Memberships and donations received 21,624 70,761 76,969
Balance, December 31, 2007 1345013 9,252,085 138,713,338 149,310,436 Retirement of patronage capital and estate payments (3,022,246) (4,027,156) (3,273,914)
Net receipts of consumer advances for construction 931,282 1,105,570 810,763
Assignable margins 0 0 6,411,750 6,411,750 Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (8,296,652) 7,906,030 (11,387,977)
Retirement of capital credits 0 0 (3,115,090) (3,115,090) Net changes in cash and cash equivalents (3,987,537) 1,281,366 (3,634,978)
Unclaimed capital credit retirements 0 963,133 0 963,133 ) o )
Memberships and donations received 45,400 151.370 0 196.770 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period $7,491,302 $6,209,936 $9,844,914
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $3,503,765 $7,491,302 $6,209,936
Balance, December 31, 2008 1,390,413 10,366,588 142,009,998 153,766,999 ) - o .
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities
Assignable margins 0 0 5,660,348 5,660,348 :ei"e"'e”t;’lf p'a';t (Tt of salvage) $991'0;é :ggé;ggg $9'473'4§;
Retirement of capital credits 0 0 (3,442,125) (3,442,125) 016S payable on fan , , %
Unclaimed capital credit retirements 0 213527 0 213,527 Extension and.replacefnent‘ of plant included in accounts payable $5,712,404 $2,656,989 $2,084,120
Memberships and donations received 41,641 80,207 0 121,848 Non-cash capltal credit retirements $331,987 $1,089,142 $921,649
Patronage capital retired and estate payments included in other current liabilities $503,237 $415,345 $2,416,552
Balance, December 31, 2009 $1,432,054 $10,660,322 $144,228 221 $156,320,597 Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information — interest expense paid, excluding amounts capitalized $19,710,442 $21,536,503 $23,772,288
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DecemMBER 31, 2009 anDp 2008

M

Description of Business and Significant Accounting Policies
a. Description of Business

Chugach Electric Association, Inc. (Chugach) is the largest electric utility in Alaska. Chugach is engaged in the generation, transmission and distribution of electricity to directly serve retail customers in the
Anchorage and upper Kenai Peninsula areas. Through an interconnected regional electrical system, Chugach's power flows throughout Alaska's Railbelt, a 400-mile-long area stretching from the coastline of the
southern Kenai Peninsula to the interior of the state, including Alaska's largest cities, Anchorage and Fairbanks.

Chugach also supplies much of the power requirements of three wholesale customers, Matanuska Electric Association, Inc. (MEA), Homer Electric Association, Inc. (HEA) and the City of Seward (Seward).
Chugach’s retail and wholesale members are the consumers of the electricity sold.

Chugach operates on a not-for-profit basis and, accordingly, seeks only to generate revenues sufficient to pay operating and maintenance costs, the cost of purchased power, capital expenditures, depreciation, and
principal and interest on all indebtedness and to provide for reserves. Chugach is subject to the regulatory authority of the Regulatory Commission of Alaska (RCA).

b. Management Estimates

In preparing the financial statements, management of Chugach is required to make estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
as of the date of the balance sheet and revenues and expenses for the reporting period. Estimates include allowance for doubtful accounts, deferred charges and credits, unbilled revenue and the estimated useful
life of utility plant. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

¢. Regulation

The accounting records of Chugach conform to the Uniform System of Accounts as prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). Chugach meets the criteria, and accordingly, follows the
accounting and reporting requirements of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 980, “Topic 980 - Regulated Operations.”

FASB ASC 980 provides for the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities as allowed by regulators for costs or credits that are reflected in current rates or are considered probable of being included in future
rates. The regulatory assets or liabilities are then reduced as the cost or credit is reflected in rates.

d._Utility Plant and Depreciation

Additions to electric plant in service are recorded at original cost of contracted services, direct labor and materials, indirect overhead charges and capitalized interest. For property replaced or retired, the book value
of the property, plus removal cost, less salvage, is charged to accumulated provision for depreciation. Renewals and betterments are capitalized, while maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.

In accordance with FASB ASC 360, “Topic 360 — Property, Plant, and Equipment,” certain utility plant is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable in rates. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair
value of the asset.

Depreciation and amortization rates have been applied on a straight-line basis and at December 31 are as follows:
Annual Depreciation Rate Ranges

01/01/2005-05/31/2008 06/01/2008-12/31/2009

Steam production plant 2.55% - 3.24% 4.45% - 5.85%
Hydraulic production plant 1.63% - 3.00% 1.22% - 3.00%
QOther production plant 3.32% - 9.81% 3.77% - 10.56%
Transmission plant 1.72% - 5.26% 1.61% - 6.67%
Distribution plant 2.10% - 9.98% 1.95% - 9.77%
General plant 2.23% - 21.25% 1.25% - 26.11%
Other 2.75% - 2.75% 2.75% - 2.75%

On April 1,2008, the RCA issued Order 21, which allowed Chugach to revise its depreciation rates effective June 1, 2008. See Note (2) — “ Regulatory Matters — 2005 Test Year General Rate Case (Docket U-06-
134)”

The most significant change resulting from the 2005 Depreciation Study update approved by the RCA in Order 21 was a reduction of the useful life of the steam plant from forty years to thirty years, which caused an
increase in the rates for steam production plant. The useful life of the hydraulic production plant at Cooper Lake was extended to 2057 to coincide with the expiration of the fifty year FERC license for the Cooper
Lake facility. This resulted in a decrease in the depreciation rates for most hydraulic production plant. Other factors that drove modifications to the depreciation rates included changes in surviving original cost,
survivor curves and net salvage percentages.

&. Capitalized Interest

Allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) and interest charged to construction - credit (IDC) are the estimated costs during the period of construction of equity and borrowed funds. AFUDC and IDC are
non-cash credits, which represent the estimated cost of funds used to finance the construction of utility plant. AFUDC and IDC are applied to applicable projects during construction. AFUDC and IDC include the net
cost of borrowed funds and a rate of return on other funds when used and is recovered through rates as utility plant is depreciated. Chugach capitalized such funds at the weighted average rate (adjusted monthly)
of 4.9 percent during 2009, 5.1 percent during 2008 and 6.3 percent during 2007. Chugach capitalized actual interest expense and related fees associated with the construction of the Southcentral Power Project
(SPP).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DecemMBER 31, 2009 anDp 2008

£ Investments in Associated Organizations

The loan agreements with CoBank, ACB (CoBank) and National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation (NRUCFC) require as a condition of the extension of credit, that an equity ownership position be
established by all borrowers. Chugach’s equity ownership in these organizations is less than 1 percent. These investments are non-marketable and accounted for at cost. Management evaluates these
investments annually for impairment. No impairment was recorded during 2009, 2008 and 2007.

& Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC 825, “Topic 825 — Financial Instruments,” requires disclosure of the fair value of certain on and off balance sheet financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate that value. The following
methods are used to estimate the fair value of financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents - the carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.
Consumer deposits - the carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short refunding term.
Long-term obligations - the fair value is estimated based on the quoted market price for same or similar issues (notes 8 and 9).

h. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, Chugach considers all highly liquid debt instruments with a maturity of three months or less upon acquisition by Chugach to be cash equivalents. Chugach has an
Overnight Repurchase Agreement with First National Bank Alaska (FNBA). Each day the balance is invested by FNBA and Chugach receives varying interest rates for our investment pursuant to our Overnight
Purchase Agreement. The Overnight Repurchase Agreement account had an average balance in 2009 and 2008 of $4,103,891 and $3,725,224, at an average interest rate of 0.17 percent and 1.43 percent,
respectively.

L Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount. The allowance for doubtful accounts is management’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in existing accounts receivable.
Chugach determines the allowance based on its historical write-off experience and current economic conditions. Chugach reviews its allowance for doubtful accounts monthly. Past due balances over 90 days in a
specified amount are reviewed individually for collectability. All other balances are reviewed in aggregate. Account balances are charged off against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted
and the potential for recovery is considered remote. Chugach does not have any off-balance-sheet credit exposure related to its customers.

[. Materials and Supplies

Materials and supplies are stated at average cost.

k_Deferred Charges and Credits

In accordance with FASB ASC 980, Chugach’s financial statements reflect regulatory assets and liabilities. Continued accounting under FASB ASC 980, requires that certain criteria be met. We capitalize all or part
of costs that would otherwise be charged to expense if it is probable that future revenue in an amount at least equal to the capitalized cost will result from inclusion of that cost in allowable costs for rate making
purposes and future revenue will be provided to permit recovery of the previously incurred cost. Management believes Chugach’s operations currently satisfy these criteria. However, if events or circumstances
should change so the criteria are not met, the write off of regulatory assets and liabilities could have a material effect on the financial position and results of operations. Deferred charges, primarily representing
regulatory assets, are amortized to operating expense over the period allowed for rate making purposes. Deferred credits, primarily representing regulatory liabilities, are amortized to operating expense over the
period allowed for rate making purposes. It also includes nonrefundable contributions in aid of construction, which are credited to the associated cost of construction of property units. Refundable contributions in
aid of construction are held in deferred credits pending their return or other disposition.

[ Patronage Capital

Revenues in excess of current period costs (net operating margins and nonoperating margins) in any year are designated on Chugach's statement of revenues and expenses as assignable margins. These excess
amounts (i.e. assignable margins) are considered capital furnished by the members, and are credited to their accounts and held by Chugach until such future time as they are retired and returned without interest at
the discretion of the Board of Directors. Retained assignable margins are designated on Chugach's balance sheet as patronage capital. This patronage capital constitutes the principal equity of Chugach. The Board
of Directors may also approve the return of capital to former members and estates who request early retirements at discounted rates under a discounted capital credits retirement plan authorized by the Board in
September 2002.

m. Operating Revenues

Revenues are recognized upon delivery of electricity. Operating revenues are based on billing rates authorized by the RCA, which are applied to customers' usage of electricity. Chugach’s rates are established, in
part, on test period sales levels that reflect actual operating results. Chugach calculates unbilled revenue at the end of each month to ensure the recognition of a calendar year’s revenue. Chugach accrued
$9,417,906 and $10,024,312 of unbilled retail revenue at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Wholesale revenue is recorded from metered locations on a calendar month basis, so no accrual is made.
Chugach's tariffs include provisions for the flow through of gas costs according to existing gas supply contracts, as well as purchased power costs.

1. Fuel and Purchased Power Costs Recovery

Expenses associated with electric services include fuel used to generate electricity and power purchased from others. Chugach is authorized by the RCA to recover fuel and purchased power costs through the fuel
surcharge process, which is adjusted quarterly to reflect increases and decreases of such costs. We recognize differences between projected recoverable fuel costs and amounts actually recovered through rates.
The fuel cost under/over recovery on our Balance Sheet represents the net accumulation of any under or over collection of fuel and purchase power costs. Fuel cost under-recovery will appear as an asset on our
Balance Sheet and will be collected from our members in subsequent periods. Conversely, fuel cost over-recovery will appear as a liability on our Balance Sheet and will be refunded to our members in subsequent
periods. Fuel costs were over-recovered by $3,233,258 in 2009 and under-recovered by $11,788,078 in 2008. Total fuel and purchased power costs in 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $172,107,237, $169,381,174,
and $139,971,562, respectively.

0. Environmental Remediation Costs
Chugach accrues for losses and establishes a liability associated with environmental remediation obligations when such losses are probable and can be reasonably estimated. Such accruals are adjusted as further

information develops or circumstances change. Estimates of future costs for environmental remediation obligations are not discounted to their present value. However, various remediation costs may be
recoverable through rates and accounted for as a regulatory asset.
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L. Income Taxes

Chugach is exempt from federal income taxes under the provisions of Section 501(c)(12) of the Internal Revenue Code and for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was in compliance with that
provision. In addition, as described in “Nofe (13) - Commitments, Contingencies and Concentrations, "Chugach collects sales tax and is assessed gross receipts and excise taxes which are presented on a net basis
in accordance with FASB ASC 605-45-50, “Topic 605 - Revenue Recognition — Subtopic 45 - Principal Agent Considerations — Section 50 - Disclosure.”

Chugach applies a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold for all tax uncertainties. FASB ASC 740 only allows the recognition of those tax benefits that have a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being
sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities. Chugach’s management reviewed Chugach’s tax positions and determined there were no outstanding, or retroactive tax positions, with less than a fifty percent
likelihood of being sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities.

Management has concluded that there are no significant uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in its financial statements for all periods presented. Chugach’s evaluation was performed for the tax periods
ended December 31, 2006 through December 31, 2009 for U.S. Federal Income Tax, the tax years which remain subject to examination by major tax jurisdictions as of December 31, 2009.

q. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

ASC Update 2009-01 “Topic 105 — Generally Accepted Accounting Principles — amendments based on — Statement No. 168 — The FASB Accounting Standards Codification™ ard the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles”

In June 2009, the FASB issued ASC Update 2009-01, “Topic 105 — Generally Accepted Accounting Principles — amendments based on Statement No. 168 — The FASB Accounting Standards Codification’™ and the Hierarchy of
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.” This update applies to all financial statements of nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). ASC
Update 2009-01 does not change GAAP, it establishes the FASB Accounting Standards Codlifcation™ (Codification) as the source of authoritative GAAP to be applied by nongovernmental entities, while also acknowledging the
rules and interpretive releases of the SEC under authority of federal securities laws as sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants. Additionally, the Codification creates a new format for tracking, identifying, and citing
GAAP, by numbered topics, subtopics, sections and paragraphs. As of the effective date of this update, all then-existing non-SEC standards will be superseded by the Codification and any non-SEC accounting literature not
grandfathered will become non-authoritative. ASC Update 2009-01 is effective for financial statements issued for periods ending after September 15, 2009. Chugach began application of ASC Update 2009-01 to the financial
statements for the period ended September 30, 2009, which did not have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position, and cash flows.

ASC Update 2010-06 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820): Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements”

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASC Update 2010-06, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820): Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements.” ASC Update 2010-06 applies to all entities that are
required to make disclosures about recurring or nonrecurring fair value measurements and expands the disclosures required based on the measurement Level. This update is effective for the first reporting period (including
interim periods) beginning after December 15, 2009, except for certain Level 3 transactions. Those transaction disclosure requirements are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010, and for interim periods
within those fiscal years. Chugach will begin application of ASC Update 2010-06 to the financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2010, which we do not expect to have a material effect on our results of operations,
financial position, and cash flows.

ASC Update 2009-05 “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820) — Measuring Liabilities at Fair Value”

In August 2009, the FASB issued ASC Update 2009-05, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820) — Measuring Liabilities at Fair Value.” ASC Update 2009-05 applies to all entities that measure liabilities at fair
value within the scope of Topic 820 and clarifies the measurement techniques to be used. This update is effective for the first reporting period (including interim periods) beginning after issuance. Chugach began application
of ASC Update 2009-05 to the financial statements for the period ended December 31, 2009, which did not have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position, and cash flows.

SFAS 167 “Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(F)’

In June 2009, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 167, “Amendments to FASB Interpretation No. 46(R).” SFAS No. 167 applies to all entities except for those identified in FIN 46(R),
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” as well as entities previously considered qualifying special-purpose entities, as the concept of these entities was eliminated by SFAS No. 166, “Accounting for Transfers of
Financial Assets.” SFAS No. 167 amends FIN 46(R) to require additional disclosures regarding an entity’s involvement in variable interest entities. SFAS No. 167 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning
after November 15, 2009. Chugach will begin application of SFAS No. 167 on January 1, 2010, which is not expected to have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position, and cash flows.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASC Update 2009-17, “/mprovements to Financial Reporting by Enterprises Involved with Variable Interest Entities, "an adaptation of SFAS No. 167 into the Codification. To view the
adapted content, see FASB ASC 810-10-30, for the Initial Measurement Section of Subtopic 10, and FASB ASC 810-10-65, for the Transition and Open Effective Date Information Section of Subtopic 810-10.

SFAS 166 “Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets — an amenament of FASB Statement No. 140'

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 166, “Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets — an amendment of FASB Statement No. 140.” SFAS No. 166 applies to all entities and amends SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities.” SFAS No. 140 was amended to enhance the disclosure requirements as well as to define some of the terms and measurements to be used, by
removing the concept of a qualifying special-purpose entity and the exception from applying FIN 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” to qualifying special-purpose entities. SFAS No. 166 is effective for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning after November 15, 2009. Chugach will begin application of SFAS No. 166 on January 1, 2010, which is not expected to have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position,
and cash flows.

In December 2009, the FASB issued ASC Update 2009-16, "Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets, "an adaptation of SFAS No. 166 into the Codification. To view the adapted content, see FASB ASC 860-10-40, for the
Derecognition Section of Subtopic 10, and FASB ASC 860-10-65, for the Transition and Open Effective Date Information of Subtopic 860-10.

FAS 165 “ Subsequent Events’

In May 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 165, “Subsequent Events.” SFAS No. 165 applies to the accounting for and disclosure of subsequent events, in both interim and annual financial statements. However, it does not
apply to those subsequent events or transactions within the scope of other GAAP that provides different guidance of subsequent events and transactions. SFAS No. 165 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods
ending after June 15, 2009. Chugach began application of SFAS No. 165 with the financial statements ending June 30, 2009, which did not have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position, and cash
flows.

Effective July 2009, the FASB adapted SFAS No. 165 into the Codification. To view the adapted content, see FASB ASC 855-10 for the Overall Subtopic of Topic 855.
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FAS 164 “ Not-for-Profit Entities: Mergers and Acquisitions — Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 142

In April 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 164, “Not-for-Profit Entities: Mergers and Acquisitions — Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 142.” SFAS No. 164 applies to the combination of not-for-profit entities
meeting the definition of a merger or acquisition, with specific exceptions. SFAS No. 164 provides guidance on the accounting and disclosure of these combinations. SFAS No. 164 is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2009. Chugach will begin application of SFAS No. 164 on January 1, 2010, which is not expected to have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position, and cash flows.

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASC Update 2010-07, “Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Not-for-Profit Entities: Mergers and Acquisitions, "an adaptation of SFAS No. 164 into the Codification. To view the adapted content,
see FASB ASC 954-805 for the Business Combinations Subtopic of Topic 954, FASB ASC 958-805 for the Business Combinations Subtopic of 958, FASB ASC 805-10-15 for the Scope and Scope Exceptions Section of Subtopic
805-10, FASB ASC 805-50-15 for the Scope and Scope Exceptions Section of Subtopic 805-50, and FASB ASC 350-10-65 for the Transition and Open Effective Date Information Section of Subtopic 350-10.

FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 25-1 “/nterim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments”

In April 2009, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) FAS 107-1 and APB 25-1, “Interim Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments.” This FSP applies to all financial instruments within the scope of SFAS No.
107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” held by publicly traded companies, as defined by APB Opinion No. 28, “Interim Financial Reporting.” This FSP expands the reporting of fair value disclosures
required by SFAS No. 107 to include interim reporting. This FSP also amends APB Opinion No. 28 to require those disclosures in summarized financial information of interim reports. FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 25-1 is effective
for interim periods ending after June 15, 2009, with early adoption permitted for periods ending after March 15, 2009. Chugach began application of FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 25-1 to fair value disclosures on January 1, 2009,
which did not have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position, and cash flows.

Effective July 2009, the FASB adapted FSP FAS 107-1 and APB 25-1 into the Codification. To view the adapted content, see FASB ASC 825-10-65-1 for paragraph 1 of Section 825-10-65.

FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 “Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments”

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2, “Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments.” FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 applies to debt securities classified as available-for-sale
and held-to-maturity that are subject to other-than-temporary impairment guidance within specific parameters. This FSP amends current GAAP guidance on other-than-temporary impairment of debt securities to make the
guidance more operational and to improve the presentation and disclosure of those impairments in the financial statements. FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 are effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after
June 15, 2009. Chugach began application of FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 on April 1, 2009, which did not have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position, and cash flows.

Effective July 2009, the FASB adapted FSP FAS 115-2 and FAS 124-2 into the Codification. To view the adapted content, see FASB ASC 320-10-65-1 for paragraph 1 of Section 320-10-65.

FSP FAS 157-4 “Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and loentifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly”

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-4, "Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the Asset or Liability Have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions.” FSP FAS 157-4 applies to all
assets and liabilities within the scope of accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurement. FSP FAS 157-4 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods ending after June 15, 2009. Chugach
began application of FSP FAS 157-4 on April 1, 2009, which did not have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position, and cash flows.

Effective July 2009, the FASB adapted FSP FAS 157-4 into the Codification. To view the adapted content, see FASB ASC 820-10-65-4 for paragraph 4 of Section 820-10-65.

£._Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with FASB ASC 820, Chugach groups its financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of
the assumptions used to determine fair value. These levels are:

Level 1 —Valuation is based upon quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active exchange markets, such as the New York Stock Exchange. Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury and federal agency
securities, which are traded by dealers or brokers in active markets. Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation techniques for
which all significant assumptions are observable in the market.

Level 3 — Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use significant assumptions not observable in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect Chugach’s estimates of assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques include use of option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques.

The table below presents the balance of Chugach’s non-qualified deferred compensation plan measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
2009 $345,792 $345,792 $0 $0
2008 $264,427 $264,427 $0 $0

Chugach had no Level 2 or Level 3 assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
. Presentation of Financial Information
For the year ended December 31, 2009, the company recorded an immaterial adjustment to correctly present cash used in investing activities and cash used in financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2008 and

2007. The adjustment represents the amount of non-refundable consumer advances previously included as a reduction of cash used in investing activities and now included as a reduction of cash used in financing activities.
The impact of the adjustment was to increase cash used in investing activities by $765,019 in 2008 and $1,229,771 and reduce cash used in financing activities by the same amount.
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Regulatory Matters

2008 Test Year General Rate Case (Docket U-09-080)

On June 23, 2009, Chugach filed a general rate case with the RCA to increase base rate revenue by $4.2 million, with increases of $2.7 million to Chugach retail customers and $1.5 million to wholesale customers.
Base rates charged to retail customers increased 3.3 percent and base rates charged to wholesale customers HEA, MEA and Seward increased 7.8 percent, 2.0 percent and 9.7 percent, respectively. The estimated
increase to Chugach’s retail end-users is approximately 1.7 percent, while the increase to retail end-users of Chugach’s wholesale customers is approximately 0.9 percent. Chugach requested that the proposed

rates become effective on an interim and refundable basis beginning August 7, 2009.

On August 7, 2009, the RCA suspended Chugach’s filing into Docket U-09-080 and issued Order No. 1. The RCA indicated that it would issue a final order in this case no later than September 16, 2010. The RCA did
not issue a decision on Chugach’s interim rate request. The RCA named the Attorney General and Chugach’s wholesale customers HEA, MEA and Seward parties to the docket.

On October 9, 2009, the RCA issued Order No. 2 granting Chugach’s original request that the proposed rates go into effect on an interim and refundable basis.

On October 15, 2009, the RCA consolidated Docket U-09-080 (General Rate Case) and Docket U-09-97 (Depreciation Study Update, explained below) and will hold combined hearings in June 2010. The Commission
has indicated that it will issue a final order in the consolidated case by September 16, 2010.

Revision to Current Depreciation Rates (Docket U-09-097)

In accordance with a stipulation with its wholesale customers, HEA and MEA, Chugach filed on August 31, 2009, an updated depreciation study based on plant balances as of December 31, 2008. The RCA opened
Docket U-09-097 to consider Chugach’s updated depreciation study and issued Order No. 1 on September 14, 2009. The RCA named Chugach’s wholesale customers HEA, MEA and Seward parties to the docket. As
indicated in the discussion under the General Rate Case above, the RCA has consolidated the depreciation study update with the general rate case.

Amortization of Cooper Lake Unit No. 2 Overhau/ Costs (Docket U-09-093)

On August 10, 2009, Chugach filed a request with the RCA to amortize approximately $1.07 million of expenditures associated with its 2008-2009 overhaul of Cooper Lake generating Unit 2 over a ten year period.
The unit’s planned overhaul was accelerated due to extensive wear that caused a forced outage in August of 2008. With this request Chugach seeks to amortize the overhaul costs and record the unamortized
balance as a “regulatory asset”.

On September 2, 2009, the RCA opened Docket U-09-093 to consider Chugach’s request and issued Order No. 1.

On October 1, 2009, the RCA issued Order No. 2, naming Chugach’s wholesale customers, HEA and MEA, parties to the docket and scheduled a pre-hearing scheduling conference. Subsequent to this order, HEA
has withdrawn from the docket and is therefore no longer participating in this adjudicatory process. The Commission accepted a stipulation between Chugach and MEA that no evidentiary hearing would be needed.

Chugach and MEA submitted testimony and legal briefs.

Chugach received payments totaling $593,854 from its insurance carrier, FM Global, for proceeds related to the overhaul of Cooper Lake Unit 2. The payment amount will offset the costs that will be amortized and
subsequently recovered in electric rates.

On February 5, 2010, the RCA issued Order No. 7, approving Chugach’s request to record the balance of expenditures associated with its overhaul of Cooper Lake Unit 2 as a regulatory asset and to amortize and
recover those costs over a ten year period beginning May of 2009.

Request for Participation in the Simplified Rate Filing Process

On December 15, 2009, Chugach submitted a request to the RCA for approval to implement the Simplified Rate Filing (SRF) process for the adjustment of base energy and demand rates in accordance with Alaska
Statute 42.05.381(e).

Utilization of SRF will allow Chugach to more efficiently adjust base rates in response to lower sales resulting from both energy conservation and technological improvements. Chugach is also interested in SRF as a
means to expedite the rate adjustment process with the goal of timely cost recovery and lower adjudicatory costs.

Chugach requested that base rate adjustments under SRF be completed on a semi-annual basis, utilizing the twelve months ended June and December as the test periods in each year. Chugach requested that its
initial SRF be submitted on the June 2010 test year for rate adjustments, if necessary, during fourth quarter, 2010.

Under SRF, base rate increases are limited to 8 percent over a 12-month period and 20 percent over a 36-month period. Chugach is still permitted to submit general rate case filings while participating in the SRF
process. However, during these periods, rate adjustments under SRF would temporarily cease.

The Commission has not yet issued an order on Chugach's request.

2005 Test Year General Rate Case (Docket U-06-134)

0On September 29, 2006, Chugach filed a general rate case based on a 2005 test year with the RCA. Overall revenues were proposed to increase $2.8 million in the initial filing.

A settlement agreement reached in July 2007 between several of the intervenors and Chugach was accepted by the RCA in Order No. 15. On April 1, 2008, the RCA issued Order No. 21 in Docket U-06-134, approving the
rates from the Settlement Agreement among Chugach, HEA and Seward. MEA did not join the Settlement Agreement. The effect of Order 21 was that overall revenues decreased by 0.8 percent, or $0.9 million, with retail base

rate revenue decreasing by 4.8 percent, or $4.2 million and wholesale base rate revenue increasing by 11.0 percent, or $3.3 million. Order No. 21 was effective June 1, 2008.

After reconsiderations concerning a long-term debt allocator, the computation of depreciation expense and re-affirming filing requirements, the RCA issued Order No. 25 on November 7, 2008, accepting Chugach’s filings and
closed docket U-06-134. In this rate case, we modified the rate design so that all fuel and purchased power costs would be recovered through the fuel and purchased power process, which was approved by the RCA.

(6}
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Utility Plant

Major classes of utility plant as of December 31 are as follows:

Electric plant in service: 2009 2008

Steam production plant $60,462,671 $60,462,671
Hydraulic production plant 20,315,628 19,597,661
Other production plant 132,645,379 137,480,817
Transmission plant 247,810,006 247,685,063
Distribution plant 242,798,640 242,489,152
General plant 47,756,148 46,634,280
Unclassified electric plant in service' 71,053,056 60,348,939
Other 11,626,206 6.763.892
Total electric plant in service 834,467,734 821,462,475
Construction work in progress? 48,383,610 25,151,072
Total electric plant in service and construction work in progress $882,851,344 $846,613,547

"Unclassified electric plant in service consists of complete unclassified general plant, generation plant, transmission plant and distribution plant. Depreciation of unclassified electric plant in service has been
included in functional plant depreciation accounts in accordance with the anticipated eventual classification of the plant investment.

The amount associated with the construction of the SPP included in construction work in progress was $26.5 and $5.8 million at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Investments in Associated Organizations

Investments in associated organizations include the following at December 31:

2009 2008
National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation $6,095,980 $6,095,980
CoBank, ACB 6,174,680 6,022,743
NRUCFC capital term certificates 46,655 42,196
Other 16,621 16.850
Total | in Associated Organizati $12,333,936 $12,177,769

The Farm Credit Administration, CoBank's federal regulators, requires minimum capital adequacy standards for all Farm Credit System institutions. CoBank's loan agreements

require, as a condition of the extension of credit, that an equity ownership position be established by all borrowers. Chugach's investment in NRUCFC similarly was required by Chugach’s financing arrangements
with NRUCFC.

Deferred Charges and Credits

Deferred Charges

Deferred charges, or regulatory assets, net of amortization, consisted of the following at December 31:

2009 2008

Debt issuance and reacquisition costs $3,439,420 $5,254,072
Refurbishment of transmission equipment 169,754 179,013
Studies 111,121 15,194
Beluga Gas Compression 3,772,461 4,918,909
Cooper Lake Relicensing / projects 6,119,493 5,857,388
Fuel supply negotiations 1,587,238 1,257,993
Major overhaul of steam generating unit 3,775,114 4,530,550
Other regulatory deferred charges 1,721,180 177,103
Environmental matters and other 1,341,626 1.386.977

Total deferred charges $22,037,407 $23,577,199

16

I 17



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DecemMBeErR 31, 2009 anDp 2008

0]

@

Deferred charges, or regulatory assets, not currently being recovered, consisted of the following at December 31, 2009 and 2008:

2009 2008

Fuel supply negotiations $1,444,789 $1,092,828
Studies/Other 111,122 72,077
Cooper Lake Unit 1 Major Overhaul 1,053,269 0
Cooper Lake Relicensing 438,380 5,800,506
Labor Contract Negotiations 14,315 177,103
Debt issuance costs __ 0 626,628

Total deferred charges $3,061,875 $7,769,142

We believe all the regulatory assets that are not currently being recovered are probable of recovery in the future based upon prior recovery of similar costs allowed by our regulator. Deferred charges are amortized
over the life of the underlying asset.

Deferred Credlits
Deferred credits, or regulatory liabilities, at December 31 consisted of the following: 2009 2008
Refundable consumer advances for construction $857.322 $1.545.081
Estimated initial installation costs for meters 120.185 141.712
Post retirement benefit obligation 593.600 593.600
Other 54,337 21,591
Total deferred credits $1,625,444 $2,301,984

Patronage Capital

Chugach has a Board approved capital credit retirement policy, which is contained in Chugach’s Financial Management Plan. This establishes, in general, a plan to return the capital credits of wholesale and retail
customers based on the members’ proportionate contribution to Chugach’s assignable margins. At December 31, 2009, Chugach had $144,228,221 of patronage capital (net of capital credits retired in 2009), which
included $138,567,873 of patronage capital that had been assigned and $5,660,348 of patronage capital to be assigned to its members. Approval of actual capital credit retirements is at the discretion of Chugach's
Board of Directors. Chugach records a liability when the retirements are approved by the Board of Directors. The Amended and Restated Indenture and the CoBank Master Loan Agreement prohibits Chugach from
making any distribution of patronage capital to Chugach’s customers if an event of default under the Amended and Restated Indenture or CoBank Master Loan Agreement exists. Otherwise, Chugach may make
distributions to Chugach’s members in each year equal to the lesser of 5 percent of Chugach’s patronage capital or 50 percent of assignable margins for the prior fiscal year. This restriction does not apply if, after
the distribution, Chugach’s aggregate equities and margins as of the end of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter are equal to at least 30 percent of Chugach's total liabilities and equities and margins.

Capital credits retired were $3,442,125, $3,115,090, and $5,289,538 for the years ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. The outstanding liability for capital credits authorized but not paid was
$503,237 and $415,345 at December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

During 2008, the Board of Directors approved the deferral of capital credit retirements after 2009 due to the construction of new generation and the anticipated loss of wholesale load in 2014.

Other Equities

A summary of other equities at December 31 follows:

2009 2008
Nonoperating margins, prior to 1967 $23,625 $23,625
Donated capital 1,380,484 1,300,277
Unclaimed capital credit retirement’ 9,256,213 9,042,686
Total other equities $10,660,322 $10,366,588

'Represents unclaimed capital credits that have met all requirements of section 34.45.200 of Alaska’s unclaimed property law and has therefore reverted to Chugach.

et Long-term obligations at December 31 are as follows: 2009 2008

CoBank 2, 5.50% fixed rate note maturing in 2010, with interest and principal payable monthly; unsecured $1,500,000 $3,500,000
CoBank 3 and 4, 2.24% variable rate notes maturing in 2022, with interest payable monthly and principal due annually beginning in 2003; unsecured 36,999,447 38,462,805

CoBank 5, 2.24% variable rate note maturing in 2012, with interest and principal payable monthly; unsecured 2,920,400 3,860,695

2001 Series A Bond of 6.55%, maturing in 2011, with interest payable semi-annually March 15 and September 15; unsecured 150,000,000 150,000,000

2002 Series A Bond of 6.20%, maturing in 2012, with interest payable semi-annually February 1 and August 1; unsecured 120,000,000 120,000,000

NRUCFC line of credit, $29.7 million at 2.75% and $13.3 million at 5.00%, with interest payable monthly and principal due 2010; unsecured 0 42,963,659

Total long-term obligations $311,419,847 $358,787,159

Less current installments 4,118,028 4,403,653

Long-term obligati luding current i $307,301,819 $354,383,506
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Covenants

Chugach is required to comply with all covenants set forth in the Amended and Restated Indenture, dated April 1, 2001, which became effective January 22, 2003. The indenture initially governing the outstanding
CoBank, 2001 Series A, 2002 Series A and 2002 Series B bonds, provided that the bonds were secured by a mortgage on substantially all of Chugach’s assets so long as any amounts were outstanding to CoBank on
bonds issued under the indenture. Upon the retirement of the then outstanding bonds on January 22, 2003, the 2001 Series A, 2002 Series A and 2002 Series B bonds (collectively, the Bonds) became subject to the
Amended and Restated Indenture pursuant to which the Bonds became unsecured obligations of Chugach.

Chugach is also required to comply with the Master Loan Agreement, which covers the CoBank 2, 3, 4 and 5 promissory notes, between Chugach and CoBank dated December 27, 2002, pursuant to which
CoBank and Chugach replaced the CoBank 2, 3, 4 and 5 bonds issued to CoBank with the above stated unsecured promissory notes not governed by the indenture. CoBank returned the old CoBank bonds to
Chugach on January 22, 2003.

Chugach is also required to comply with the Credit Agreement, between Chugach and NRUCFC dated October 10, 2008, which covers loans and extended credit associated with Chugach’s commercial paper
program, in an aggregate principal or face amount not exceeding $300 million at any one time outstanding.

Chugach is also required to comply with other covenants set forth in the Reimbursement and Indemnity Agreement with MBIA Insurance Corporation, which insures the outstanding 2001 Series A and 2002 Series A
bonds and the Revolving Line of Credit Agreement with NRUCFC.

Security

On January 22, 2003, the Bonds became general unsecured and unsubordinated obligations. Under the Amended and Restated Indenture, Chugach is prohibited from creating or permitting to exist any mortgage,
lien, pledge, security interest or encumbrance on Chugach’s properties and assets (other than those arising by operation of law) to secure the repayment of borrowed money or the obligation to pay the deferred
purchase price of property unless Chugach equally and ratably secures the Bonds subject to the Amended and Restated Indenture, except that Chugach may incur secured indebtedness in an amount not to exceed
$5 million or enter into sale and leaseback or similar agreements.

Rates

The Amended and Restated Indenture requires Chugach, subject to any necessary regulatory approval, to establish and collect rates reasonably expected to yield margins for interest equal to at least 1.10 times total
interest expense. If there occurs any material change in the circumstances contemplated at the time rates were most recently reviewed, the Amended and Restated Indenture requires Chugach to seek appropriate
adjustment to those rates so that they would generate revenues reasonably expected to yield margins for interest equal to at least 1.10 times interest charges. The CoBank Master Loan Agreement also requires
Chugach to establish and collect rates reasonably expected to yield margins for interest equal to at least 1.10 times interest expense. The NRUCFC Revolving Line of Credit Agreement requires Chugach to maintain
an average Times Interest Earned Ratio (TIER) of not less than 1.10. The NRUCFC Credit Agreement requires Chugach to maintain a minimum margins for interest of at least 1.10 times interest charges for each
fiscal year, calculated using the average margins for interest of the two best years out of the three fiscal years most recently ended. Margins for interest generally consist of Chugach’s assignable margins plus total
interest expense.

Distributions fo Members

The Amended and Restated Indenture and the CoBank Master Loan Agreement prohibits Chugach from making any distribution of patronage capital to Chugach’s customers if an event of default under the Amended
and Restated Indenture or CoBank Master Loan Agreement exists. Otherwise, Chugach may make distributions to Chugach’'s members in each year equal to the lesser of 5 percent of Chugach’s patronage capital or
50 percent of assignable margins for the prior fiscal year. This restriction does not apply if, after the distribution, Chugach’s aggregate equities and margins as of the end of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter

are equal to at least 30 percent of Chugach’s total liabilities and equities and margins.

Maturities of Long-term Obljgations

Long-term obligations at December 31, 2009, mature as follows:

Sinking Fund Sinking Fund Principal Maturities
Year ending Requirements Requirements CoBank Promissory Notes

December 31 2001 Series A Bonds 2002 Series A Bonds NRUCFC Line of Creit fotel
2010 0 0 4,118,028 4,118,028
2011 150,000,000 0 2,851,501 152,851,501
2012 0 120,000,000 2,693,543 122,693,543
2013 0 0 2,076,355 2,076,355
2014 0 0 2,266,145 2,266,145
Thereafter 0 0 27,414,275 27,414,275
150,000,000 120,000,000 $41,419,847 $311,419,847

Lines of credlit

Chugach maintained a $7.5 million line of credit with CoBank, ACB (CoBank). The line of credit expired on October 31, 2009, and was subject to annual renewal at the discretion of the parties. Chugach did not
renew this line of credit upon its expiration date due to unused carrying costs, its lack of use and the existence of the NRUCFC line of credit and Commercial Paper borrowing capacity. Chugach had activity on this
ling of credit in the first half of 2009, however, this line of credit wasn't utilized in the third or fourth quarters of 2009 and had no outstanding balance upon its expiration on October 31, 2009. At December 31,
2008, the outstanding balance on this line of credit was $7.5 million.

The CoBank Master Loan Agreement requires Chugach to establish and collect electric rates reasonably expected to yield margins for interest equal to at least 1.10 times interest expense, to achieve a funded debt
to operating cash flow ratio not greater than 8 to 1 and achieve an equity to total capitalization ratio greater than 22 percent. The borrowing rate is calculated using the CoBank Base Rate on the first business day of
the week plus 3 percent. The average borrowing rate for 2009 and 2008 was 2.25 percent and 3.82 percent, respectively.
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In addition, Chugach had an annual line of credit of $50 million available with NRUCFC until October 9, 2008, when Chugach reduced this line of credit to $45 million. The reduction to the borrowing limit was
temporary in order that a full $300 million commitment on an unsecured credit agreement backstopping Chugach’s Commercial Paper program, could be met. On December 22, 2008, this line of credit was
increased to $75 million, however, pursuant to the terms of the Amendment To Revolving Line of Credit Agreement with NRUCFC, this line of credit was permanently reduced to $50 million on January 30, 2009.
Chugach utilized this line of credit in the first quarter of 2009 and had a balance of $38 million on January 30, 2009, when we repaid $30.0 million by issuing commercial paper under our Commercial Paper
program. In February of 2009, Chugach repaid the balance on this line of credit by issuing additional commercial paper.

In March of 2008 Chugach borrowed $29.7 million on this line of credit to redeem the outstanding principal amount and pay accrued interest on the 2002 Series B Bonds. Chugach also utilized this line of credit for
general working capital in 2008 and had a balance of $43.0 million at December 31, 2008. The borrowing rate on the transaction to redeem the 2002 Series B Bonds was 2.75 percent at December 31, 2008. The
borrowing rate on all other transactions at December 31, 2009 and 2008 was 4.95 percent and 5.00 percent, respectively and is calculated using the total rate per annum as may be fixed by NRUCFC and will not
exceed the Prevailing Prime Rate, plus one percent per annum. The NRUCFC Revolving Line Of Credit Agreement requires that Chugach, for each 12-month period, for a period of at least five consecutive days, pay
down the entire outstanding principal balance. The NRUCFC line of credit expires October 14, 2012.

The CoBank and NRUCFC lines of credit are immediately available for unconditional borrowing.

Notes payable

In December of 2008, Chugach acquired property near its Anchorage headquarters for, among other purposes, construction of an additional electrical generation facility. The total purchase price of the property was
$4,860,000 which included a $75,000 non refundable earnest money payment, a $1,925,000 down payment and a $2,860,000 promissory note bearing interest at six percent per annum payable in two installments.
A payment of $1,000,000 was made in March of 2009 and the final payment of $1,860,000 plus accrued interest was made on June 12, 2009. Chugach had the right to prepay any amount of the note in full at any

time without penalty. The promissory note was secured by a deed of trust on the property.

Financing / Commercial Paper

Over the next five years, Chugach anticipates financing increased capital expenditures due to the construction of a natural gas fired generation unit, on-going capital needs and plans to refinance $150 million of
2001 Series A Bonds due March 15, 2011, and $120 million of 2002 Series A Bonds due February 1, 2012. Commercial paper is being issued and will act as a bridge until Chugach converts Commercial Paper
balances to long term debt and to refinance the 2011 and 2012 Series A bonds. On October 10, 2008, Chugach entered into a $300 million Unsecured Credit Agreement between NRUCFC, KeyBank, CoBank and US
Bank intended to back the commercial paper program. The Credit Agreement was priced with an all-in drawn spread of London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 60 basis points, along with a 17.5 basis points
facility fee. The credit agreement expires on October 10, 2011. At this time, management intends to renew this agreement although the terms may be different. On January 30 and February 5, 2009, Chugach
issued $36.0 and $10.0 million, respectively, of commercial paper to repay the balance of its NRUCFC line of credit. Chugach had additional commercial paper activity in 2009 and at December 31, 2009, had $51.5
million of commercial paper outstanding. Our commercial paper can be repriced between one day and two hundred and seventy days. The following table provides information regarding average commercial paper
balances outstanding (dollars in millions), as well as corresponding weighted average interest rates:

Average Weighted Average
Month Balance Interest Rate

January 2009 36.0 1.17
February 2009 44.6 1.48
March 2009 46.6 1.19
April 2009 47.0 0.60
May 2009 430 0.53
June 2009 417 0.49
July 2009 415 0.44
August 2009 18.6 0.36
September 2009 53.1 0.32
October 2009 54.2 0.28
November 2009 52.9 0.26
December 2009 53.5 0.26

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values (in thousands) of the long-term obligations included in the financial statements at December 31 are as follows:

2009 2008
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Long-term obligations $311,420 $330,358 $358,787 $371,213

(including current instaliments)

Fair value estimates are dependent upon subjective assumptions and involve significant uncertainties resulting in variability in estimates with changes in assumptions. The fair value of long-term debt has been
determined using discounted future cash flows at borrowing rates currently available to Chugach. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable, and other short-term monetary
assets and liabilities approximate carrying value due to their short-term nature.

Employee Benefit Plans

Pension Plans

Pension benefits for substantially all union employees are provided through the Alaska Electrical Pension Trust Fund and the Alaska Hotel, Restaurant and Camp Employees Health and Welfare and Pension Trust
Fund, multi-employer plans. Chugach pays an hourly amount per eligible union employee pursuant to the collective bargaining unit agreements. In these master, multi-employer plans, the accumulated benefits

and plan assets are not determined or allocated separately to the individual employer.

The costs for the union plans were approximately $3.0 million, $2.9 million, and $2.9 million in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Chugach has no responsibility for any unfunded benefit obligation of the Plan at
this time.

(11)
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Pension benefits for non-union employees are provided by the National Rural Electric Cooperative Association (NRECA) Retirement and Security Program, a multi-employer plan. Chugach makes annual
contributions to the pension plan equal to the amounts accrued for pension expense. Chugach contributed $2.1 million, $1.8 million, and $1.9 million in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively, to the NRECA plan.
Chugach has no responsibility for any unfunded benefit obligation of the Plan at this time.

Health and Welfare Plans

Health and welfare benefits for union employees are provided through the Alaska Electrical Health and Welfare Trust and the Alaska Hotel, Restaurant and Camp Employees Health and Welfare and Pension Trust
Fund. Chugach participates in multi-employer plans that provide substantially all union workers with health care and other welfare benefits during their employment with Chugach. Chugach pays a defined amount
per union employee pursuant to collective bargaining unit agreements. Amounts charged to benefit costs and contributed to the health and welfare plans for these benefits for the years ending December 31, 2009,
2008, and 2007 were $3.4 million, $3.5 million, and $3.3 million respectively.

Chugach participates in a multi-employer plan through the Group Benefits Program of NRECA for non-union employees. Amounts charged to benefit cost and contributed to this Plan for those benefits for the years
ended December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 totaled $2.1 million, $1.9 million, and $1.9 million respectively.

Money Purchase Pension Plan

Chugach participates in a multi-employer defined contribution money purchase pension plan covering some employees who are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. Contributions to the Plan are made
based on a percentage of each employee’s compensation. Contributions to the money purchase pension plan for the years ending December 31, 2009, 2008, and 2007 were $99.7 thousand, $91.8 thousand, and
$142.1 thousand, respectively.

401(k) Plan
Chugach has a defined contribution 401(k) retirement plan which covers substantially all employees who, effective January 1, 2008, can participate immediately.

Employees who elect to participate may contribute up to the Internal Revenue Service’s maximum of $16,500, $15,500, and $15,500 in 2009, 2008, and 2007 respectively. Chugach does not make contributions to
the plan.

Deferred Compensation

Chugach adopted NRECA's unfunded Deferred Compensation Program (the Program) to allow highly compensated employees who elect to participate in the Program to defer a portion of their current compensation
and avoid paying tax on the deferrals until received. The program is a non-qualified plan under Internal Revenue Code 457(b).

Deferred compensation accounts are established for the individual employees, however, they are considered to be owned by Chugach until a distribution is made. The amounts credited to the deferred
compensation account, including gains or losses, are retained by Chugach until the entire amount credited to the account has been distributed to the participant or to the participant's beneficiary. The balance of the
Program for the years ending December 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 was $345,792, $264,427 and $768,041, respectively.

Potential Termination Payments

Pursuant to a Chugach Operating Policy, non-represented employees, including the executive officers except the Chief Executive Officer, who are terminated by Chugach for reasons unrelated to employee
performance are entitled to severance pay for each year or partial year of service as follows: two weeks for each year of service to a maximum of twenty-six (26) weeks for thirteen (13) years or more of service.

Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project

Chugach is a participant in the Bradley Lake Hydroelectric Project (Bradley Lake). Bradley Lake was built and financed by the Alaska Energy Authority (AEA) through State of Alaska grants and $166,000,000 of
revenue bonds. Chugach and other participating utilities have entered into take-or-pay power sales agreements under which shares of the project capacity have been purchased and the participants have agreed to
pay a like percentage of annual costs of the project (including ownership, operation and maintenance costs, debt service costs and amounts required to maintain established reserves). Under these take-or-pay
power sales agreements, the participants have agreed to pay all project costs from the date of commercial operation even if no energy is produced. Chugach has a 30.4 percent share of the project’s capacity. The
share of debt service exclusive of interest, for which Chugach has guaranteed, is approximately $34 million. Upon the default of a Bradley Lake participant, and subject to certain other conditions, AEA, through
Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority, is entitled to increase each participant’s share of costs pro rata, to the extent necessary to compensate for the failure of another participant to pay its share,
provided that no participant’s percentage share is increased by more than 25 percent. Upon default, Chugach could be faced with annual expenditures of approximately $5.4 million as a result of Chugach’s Bradley
Lake take-or-pay obligations. Management believes that such expenditures, if any, would be recoverable through the fuel surcharge rate making process.

The following represents information with respect to Bradley Lake at June 30, 2009 (the most recent date for which information is available). Chugach's share of expenses was $5,152,716 in 2009, $4,746,965 in
2008, and $4,816,790 in 2007 and is included in purchased power in the accompanying financial statements.

(In thousands) Total Proportionate Share
Plant in service $ 196,824 $ 59,834
Long-term debt 107,301 32,620
Interest expense 7,116 2,163

Other electric plant represents Chugach's share of a Bradley Lake transmission line financed internally and Electric Plant Held for Future Use.

Eklutna Hydroelectric Project

During October 1997, the ownership of the Eklutna Hydroelectric Project formally transferred from the Alaska Power Administration to the participating utilities. This group, including their corresponding interest in
the project, consists of Chugach (30 percent), MEA (16.7 percent) and Anchorage Municipal Light & Power (AML&P) (53.3 percent).

Plant in service in 2009 includes $2,397,677, net of accumulated depreciation of $898,649, which represents Chugach’s share of the Eklutna Hydroelectric Plant. In 2008 plant in service included $2,476,755, net
of accumulated depreciation of $816,606. Chugach and AML&P jointly operate the facility. Each participant contributes their proportionate share for operation, maintenance and capital improvement costs to the
plant, as well as to the transmission line between Anchorage and the plant. Under net billing arrangements, Chugach then reimburses MEA for their share of the costs. Chugach’s share of expenses was $615,060,
$886,261, and $712,552 in 2009, 2008, and 2007, respectively and is included in power production and depreciation expense in the accompanying financial statements. AML&P performs major maintenance at the
plant. Chugach provides personnel for the daily operation and maintenance of the power plant, who perform daily plant inspections, meter reading, monthly report preparation, and other activities as required.
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(13)  Commitments, Contingencies and Concentrations

Contingencies

Chugach is a participant in various legal actions, rate disputes, personnel matters and claims both for and against Chugach’s interests. Management believes the outcome of any such matters will not materially
impact Chugach’s financial condition, results of operations or liquidity.

Fuel Supply Contracts

Chugach has long-term fuel supply contracts from various producers at market terms. These contracts will expire at the end of the currently committed volumes or the contract expiration dates of 2015 and 2025.
The committed 215 billion cubic feet (BCF) for the 2015 contract is expected to run out in 2010. The 180 BCF commitment for the 2025 contracts is expected to run out in early 2011. The RCA approved a gas supply
contract between Chugach and ConocoPhillips Alaska, Inc. and ConocoPhillips, Inc. (collectively “COP”), effective August 21, 2009. The new contract will provide gas beginning in 2010 and will terminate December
31,2016. The total amount of gas under the contract is now estimated to be 62 BCF. The new contract is now designed to fill 100 percent of Chugach’s unmet needs until April 2011, approximately 50 percent of
Chugach’s unmet needs from May 2011 through December 2014, approximately 60 percent in 2015 and approximately 29 percent in 2016. Chugach has a tentative agreement on a contract that would fill
Chugach’s remaining unmet needs through the near future and expects to file that contract with the RCA for approval by the end of the first quarter of 2010. In 2009, 90 percent of our power was generated from
gas, compared to 91 percent and 93 percent in 2008 and 2007 respectively. 83 percent of the gas-fired power was generated at Chugach’s Beluga Power Plant in 2009 compared with 76 percent in 2008 and 85
percent in 2007.

In 2009, fuel was purchased directly from Marathon Oil Company, Chevron/Unocal, AML&P and COP. The following represents the cost of fuel purchased from these vendors as a percentage of total fuel costs for
the years ended December 31:

2009 2008 2007
Marathon Oil Company 44.6% 49.7% 46.4%
Chevron/Unocal 20.9% 19.1% 20.4%
AML&P 16.7% 15.4% 16.1%
cop 17.8% 15.8% 16.9%

Loncentrations

Approximately 70 percent of Chugach’s employees are represented by the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW). Chugach has three Collective Bargaining Unit Agreements (CBA) with the IBEW
which expire on June 30, 2010. On February 24, 2010, the Board of Directors approved an extension of the IBEW Collective Bargaining Unit Agreements. The three extensions provide no wage increase in the first
year and are attached to the Consumer Price Index (CPI) in the second and third years, with a floor on the minimum increase and a cap on the maximum increase. The wage increases also have an indirect
connection to Chugach’s financial performance. The contract extensions expire on June 30, 2013.

Chugach is the principal supplier of power under long-term wholesale power contracts with MEA and HEA. These contracts represented $112.6 million or 39 percent of sales revenue in 2009, $104.6 million or 37
percent in 2008, and $93.4 million or 37 percent in 2007. The HEA contract expires January 1, 2014, and the MEA contract expires December 31, 2014. Non-renewal of these contracts could have a negative impact

on the rates charged to other Chugach customers. Notification was made by MEA and HEA that neither organization intends to renew these contracts, however, MEA has recently advised Chugach that it desires to
open discussions regarding power sales possibilities beyond 2014. All rates are established by the RCA.

Regulatory Cost Charge

In 1992, the State of Alaska Legislature passed legislation authorizing the Department of Revenue to collect a Regulatory Cost Charge from utilities to fund the governing regulatory commission, which is currently
the RCA. The tax is assessed on all retail consumers and is based on kilowatt-hour (kWh) consumption. The tax is collected monthly and remitted to the State of Alaska quarterly. The Regulatory Cost Charge has
changed since its inception (November 1992) from an initial rate of $0.000626 per kWh to the current rate of $0.000432, effective July 1, 2009. The tax is reported on a net basis and the tax is not included in
revenue or expense.

Sales Tax

Chugach collects sales tax on retail electricity sold to Kenai and Whittier consumers. The tax is collected monthly and remitted to the Kenai Peninsula Borough quarterly. Sales tax is reported on a net basis and the
tax is not included in revenue or expense.

Gross Receipts Tax

Chugach pays to the State of Alaska a gross receipts tax in lieu of state and local ad valorem, income and excise taxes on electricity sold in the retail market. The tax is accrued monthly and remitted annually. The
tax is reported on a net basis and the tax is not included in revenue.

Excise taxes

Excise taxes on Chugach fuel purchases are paid directly to our gas producers and are recorded under “Fuel” in Chugach’s financial statements and are not directly passed through to consumers.

Underground Compliance Charge

In 2005 the Anchorage Municipal Assembly adopted an ordinance to require utilities to convert overhead distribution lines to underground. To comply with the ordinance, Chugach must invest two percent of gross
retail revenue in the Municipality of Anchorage annually in moving existing distribution overhead lines underground. Consistent with State of Alaska undergrounding requirement, Chugach is permitted to amend its

rates by adding a 2 percent surcharge to its retail members’ bills to recover the actual costs of the program. The rate amendments are not subject to RCA review or approval. Chugach implemented the surcharge in
June 2005. Chugach’s liability was $0 and $468,173 for this surcharge at December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively and will use the funds to offset the costs of the projects.

(14)
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Environmental Matters

The Clean Air Act and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations under the act (the “Clean Air Act”) establish ambient air quality standards and limit the emission of many air pollutants. Some Clean Air Act programs
that regulate electric utilities, notably the Title IV “acid rain” requirements, do not apply to facilities located in Alaska. In 2008 the EPA vacated regulations to limit mercury emissions from fossil-fired steam-electric
generating facilities.

New Clean Air Act regulations impacting electric utilities may result from future events or may result from new regulatory programs. On October 30, 2009, EPA published new federal regulations requiring the mandatory
reporting of greenhouse gases from all sectors of the economy. Chugach is subject to this new regulation which is not expected to have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position, and cash flows. While
we cannot predict whether any additional new regulation would occur or its limitation, it is possible that new laws or regulations could increase our capital and operating costs. We have obtained or applied for all Clean Air Act
permits currently required for the operation of our generating facilities.

In March 2007, Chugach conducted emissions testing at the Bernice Lake Power Plant which indicated that two of the gas turbines at the facility were exceeding the New Source Performance Standards (NSPS) emission limit
for nitrogen oxides (NOX). Chugach voluntarily limited the power output of these turbines to ensure interim compliance with the NSPS regulations until a water injection system to control NOx emissions from the turbines was
installed and operational. With the water injection system, Chugach is able to fully utilize the power output from these turbines while complying with the NSPS regulations.

The Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation (ADEC) issued a Notice of Violation (NOV) on March 26, 2008, regarding the NSPS NOx emission limit exceedances. Chugach entered into a settlement with ADEC
regarding the NOV for the past NSPS non-compliance. Chugach and the ADEC signed the settlement agreement on February 18, 2009. As part of the settlement, Chugach paid a civil penalty of $112,161 to ADEC on April 3,
2009, bringing the issue to a close.

Chugach is subject to numerous other environmental statutes including the Clean Water Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, the Endangered Species Act, and the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act and to the regulations implementing these statutes. We do not believe that compliance with these statutes and regulations to date has had a material
impact on our financial condition or results of operation. However, new laws or regulations, implementation of final regulations or changes in or new interpretations of these laws or regulations could result in significant
additional capital or operating expenses.

Generation Commitments

Chugach is in the process of developing a natural gas fired generation plant on land currently owned by Chugach near its Anchorage headquarters. The SPP will be developed and owned jointly with AML&P. Chugach will own
and take 70 percent of the new plant's output and AML&P will own and take the remaining 30 percent. Chugach will account for its ownership in the SPP proportionately. Chugach and AML&P signed Participation, Operation
and Maintenance (0&M) and Lease Agreements (Agreements) for this project on August 28, 2008. On November 17, 2008, Chugach executed a gas turbine purchase agreement for the purchase of three gas turbines with an
option for a fourth turbine with General Electric Packaged Power (GEPP). The option to purchase a fourth turbine expired on January 31, 2009. During 2009 Chugach executed several change orders associated with its
purchase agreement with GEPP totaling $7.2 million, which included the purchase of a spare engine for maintenance purposes. Chugach made progress and milestone payments of $5.1 and $24.3 million in 2008 and
2009, respectively, and is expected to make payments of $29.2 million in 2010, pursuant to its purchase agreement and subsequent change orders with GEPP. In December of 2008, Chugach purchased land adjacent to its
Anchorage headquarters for SPP use. Chugach executed an Owner’s Engineer Services Contract on May 12, 2009. This contract expired on December 31, 2009, but was later renewed effective January 1, 2010.

Chugach made payments of $0.7 million in 2009, pursuant to its Owner’s Engineer Services Contract. On January 5, 2010, Chugach executed a Services Contract for the_shipment of the combustion turbine
generators and related accessories. Chugach is expected to make payments of $1.1 million in 2010 pursuant to this contract. On February 25, 2010, Chugach purchased additional land adjacent to its Anchorage
headquarters for the laydown of equipment displaced by the new power plant. Chugach is currently proceeding with a Request for Proposal (RFP) for engineering, procurement and construction services as well as a
steam turbine generator purchase agreement to be awarded in 2010.

Quarterly Results of Operations (unaudited

2009 Quarter Ended
Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31
Operating Revenue $74,025,693 $63,565,392 $69,239,153 $83,417,070
Operating Expense 64,737,009 60,092,648 65,798,407 74,244,513
Net Interest 5,013,421 5,122,410 5,164,488 5,306,030
Net Operating Margins 4,275,263 (1,649,666) (1,723,742) 3,866,527
Non-Operating Margins 577.889 140,868 61,508 111,701
Assignable Margi
ssignable Margins $4.853,152 $(1,508,798) $(1,662,234) $3,978,228
2008 Quarter Ended
Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31
Operating Revenue $83,640,633 $70,297,168 $62,483,023 $71,871,288
Operating Expense 74,389,389 66,066,452 58,789,189 61,335,335
Net Interest 5,911,966 5,605,569 5,384,524 5,630,738
Net Operating Margins 3,339,278 (1,374,853) (1,690,690 4,905,215
Non-Operating Margins 807.390 152,127 121,691 151,592
Assignable Margi
ssignanie argims $4.146.668 $01.222.726) $(1,568999) $5.056,807
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‘ POWER

SuprpPLY

PoOwER DELIVERY

Power Supply is responsible for operating
and maintaining Chugach’s power plants, its
power control center, Supervisory Control and
Data Acquisition System and communica-
tions infrastructure.

A new power plant project, known as the
Southcentral Power Project, will be built

on about 12 acres of land at Chugach’s
headquarters complex. The SPP is a joint
venture between Chugach and Municipal
Light & Power. The 183-megawatt plant will
have three natural gas turbine-generators
and one steam turbine-generator. In
October a Request for Qualifications was
issued seeking input from firms interested

in bidding on the EPC contract to “engineer,
procure and construct” the new power plant.
Chugach and ML&P asked three contractors
to respond to a Request for Proposal by mid-
March. Construction of the SPP is expected
to begin in early 2011, with commissioning
and startup in 2013.

Summer is when most major power plant
maintenance projects are completed. In
2009, Chugach painted its Cooper Lake
Power Plant located on the shore of Kenai
Lake. Painting the 19.2-megawatt plant was
one of the conditions Chugach agreed to in
2007 in order to secure a new 50-year oper-
ating license for the project from the Federal

Energy Regulatory Commission.

Chugach also completed major mainte-
nance projects on the utility’s generation
units in the summer of 2009. In July, the
crews at the Beluga Power Plant, located
40 air miles across Cook Inlet, completed
an annual inspection of Unit No. 8, a steam
turbine-generator that uses the hot exhaust
of the two largest gas turbines at the plant
to provide the heat for its boiler. The unitis
currently the only steam unit on the Chugach
system.

In 2009, Chugach worked with electric and
gas utilities and the Municipality of Anchor-
age to develop a contingency plan for a
possible natural gas shortfall. The “Energy
Watch” plan is intended to cut energy use via
a number of options, including diverting gas,
increasing hydropower production and asking
customers to cut back. In October the Mu-
nicipality of Anchorage held an Energy Watch
test to determine if customers would cut
their usage when asked. The evening test
showed that electric and gas customers cut
their energy demand by about 2-4 percent.

Chugach replaced the control system used
by its Power Control Center to operate the
electrical grid. The SCADA system provides
vital information, including monitoring

generation status and controlling the units
and their power output. Chugach completed
final testing in December, and cut over to the
new system in mid-January 2010. ML&P
also upgraded its SCADA system as part of a
joint effort.

The Beluga Power Plant is located on the
west side of Cook Inlet.

The Southcentral Power Project will be

built on vacant land (center) at Chugach’s
headquarters complex, near an existing power
plant at this location (foreground).

Representatives from gas and electric utilities
and the Municipality of Anchorage participated
in a table top excercise of the Energy Watch
program.

Unit No. 8 at the Beluga Power Plant was
dismantled for an annual inspection.

Power Delivery is responsible for delivering
safe and reliable power through its Engineer-
ing & Operations functions.

Chugach energized a new section of a
138-kilovolt transmission line along 0’Malley
Road in November that linked the Retherford
and University substations. In addition, the
project included placing a new 34.5-kilo-
volt subtransmission line and an existing
12.5-kilovolt distribution line underground
along 0'Malley Road between the New
Seward Highway and Elmore Road. The
0’Malley line electrically completed the con-
nection of a larger project called the South
Anchorage Loop that was begun 8 years
earlier. The goal was to improve local and
regional reliability by building a new trans-
mission substation in South Anchorage and
linking it to Chugach'’s two other Anchorage
Bowl transmission substations.

Cable injection projects continue to be a
part of the routine summer work for crews.
As underground cable begins to age and
sometimes fail, Chugach injects it where
feasible with a special fluid to extend its life
by as much as a decade or more. Chugach
crews completed injection projects in seven
subdivisions, including Spring Hills, Queens-
gate and Alpine Village.

Chugach crews completed a major mainte-

nance project at the Bernice Lake Substation
in May. The work required setting up and
energizing the mobile substation to serve
the Homer Electric load during the seven
days the Bernice Lake Substation was out
of service. The project included replacing
switches and completing maintenance on
two transformers. In addition, the crews
reconstructed the facilities where the trans-
mission line drops into the substation.

Substation maintenance continues to be

a high priority. Chugach’s comprehensive
reliability centered maintenance program
which uses predictive maintenance (PdM)
techniques optimizes the effectiveness of
the dollars spent on maintenance and allows
Chugach to find and repair defective equip-
ment before it fails.

The PdM program helps Chugach determine
when to perform maintenance based upon
non-invasive, on-line diagnostic tests rather
than scheduling time-based maintenance
on equipment that, in reality, may not need
to be maintained at that time. Time-based
maintenance is labor-intensive, ineffective
in identifying problems that develop between
scheduled inspections and is not cost-
effective. Technologies used include infrared
thermography, dissolved gas, vibration and
partial discharge analysis, and other on-line
diagnostic tests.

In 2009 the PdM program identified failing
insulators at the Beluga Power Plant. In
finding and repairing these insulators early,
Chugach saved not only the cost of replac-
ing failed equipment but avoided what could
have been a significant plant outage. By
preventing total equipment failure, Chugach
has avoided more than $4 million in costs
over the past nine years and has contrib-
uted greatly to the reliability of the system.
Chugach’s PdM program has been recog-
nized by the utility industry and has been the
recipient of two national awards.

A continued focus on safety contributes to
the successful completion of Operation’s
maintenance and outage response activi-
ties. Chugach is instrumental in providing
annual pole top and aerial rescue training
not only for its own electrical workers, but for
workers from other utilities as well. Pole top
and aerial rescue training is unique as only
qualified personnel are able to perform it due
to the location of energized electric lines or
equipment. In most years, Chugach trains
more than 100 individuals from Chugach
and other organizations, including the City of
Seward, the City of Cordova, Municipal Light
& Power and Matanuska Telephone Associa-
tion.

Circuit switchers were repaired at Girdwood
in the fall.

Major maintenance was done at the Bernice
Lake Substation.

Pole top rescue training is conducted annually.
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ADMINISTRATION

Administration is responsible for Chugach’s
Administrative Services, Information
Services, Member Services, Commercial &
Community Relations and Safety functions —
including energy efficiency and conservation
programs.

The Smart Power program kicked off in Janu-
ary. Chugach initially joined forces with Mu-
nicipal Light & Power, and later in September
with Matanuska Electric Association. The
utilities offered customers a discounted price
to purchase a variety of compact fluorescent
lamps (CFLs). The utilities set a goal to put
70,000 additional CFLs in homes in 2009.
The result was nearly double the goal, with
130,000 CFLs being placed in homes. The
program added workshops focusing on com-
mercial lighting, CFLs and energy efficient
light fixtures. As an added benefit a new
Web site (www.smartpowerak.com) provides
energy tips and other energy efficiency and
conservation information.

Chugach had a booth in the Anchorage Home
Builders Association Home & Remodel-

ing Show in March. The booth focused on
the Smart Power program and offered free
CFLs to the first 2,000 Chugach members.
Chugach also sponsored a lighting workshop.

During 2009 an increased emphasis was
placed on workplace safety, which resulted in
a decrease of work place recordable injuries
to the lowest number in over a decade of
statistics. The number of lost-time injuries
sustained in 2009 was also decreased —
tying with 2003 for the least number of lost
time injuries in nearly a decade. Several
tools were developed to help this process,
including a senior management review of all
lost-time injuries and using a consultant to
interview employees on safety issues.

A legislative initiative to allow members
another voting option continues to work its
way through the legislature. Chugach and
other utilities are seeking a statute change to
allow members the option to vote electroni-
cally in the annual election for directors and
proposed bylaw changes.

STRATEGIC
PLANNING &
CORPORATE
AFFAIRS

Strategic Planning & Corporate Affairs is
responsible for long-term planning, fuel sup-
ply, new business development, Government
Relations & Corporate Communications and
corporate business analysis.

In planning for the future, many of the
Railbelt utilities are continuing to support the
creation of an entity to meet the combined
generation and transmission needs of their
customers. They are backing legislation

for the 2010 legislative session to create

the Greater Railbelt Energy and Transmis-
sion Corp., or GRETC. The vision of the new
organization would include regional planning,
transmission operation and interconnection
guidelines, generation diversification and
development of large-scale renewables.

Chugach uses natural gas to produce about
90 percent of the power it sells annually,
with the balance coming from hydroelectric
projects. A major milestone was reached
in 2009 when the Regulatory Commission

Chugach added the new Smart Power Alaska
Web site to provide energy information to
members.

SMARI

POWERAK =3

uuuuuuuuuu

The Smart Power program was kicked off with
a demonstration on energy-efficient compact
fluorescent lamps.

Member Services strives to provide the best
customer service to Chugach members.
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of Alaska approved a natural gas contract
between Chugach and ConocoPhillips. The
new seven-year contract will fill 100 percent
of Chugach’s unmet needs through April
2011, about 50 percent of Chugach’s unmet
needs from May 2011 through December
2014, approximately 60 percent in 2015 and
approximately 29 percent in 2016. The total
volume of gas under the contract is about
62 billion cubic feet and most will be priced
using a market basket of Lower 48 produc-
tion area price points, as published in Platts
Gas Daily. Chugach will continue to work to
obtain additional natural gas contracts with
other suppliers of natural gas.

Chugach has contingency plans for a wide
range of events, including earthquakes,
avalanches and volcanoes. As the possibil-
ity loomed for a possible natural gas shortfall
in 2009, Chugach worked with electric and
gas utilities and the Municipality of Anchor-
age to develop a contingency plan called
“Energy Watch.” The plan identified mul-
tiple actions that could be taken, including
diverting gas from the liquefied natural gas
plant, increasing hydropower production and
asking customers to voluntarily cut back on
their gas and electric usage, with intentional
interruptions of service as a last resort.

FINANCE

The Finance Division is responsible for
Chugach’s Accounting, Finance, Regula-
tory Affairs & Pricing and risk management
functions.

Over the year, members saw their bills
change, both on the bottom line and in the
makeup of the bill itself.

Fuel costs continued to be a significant
portion of customer bill levels. The impact of
record high crude oil prices and other energy
commodities in 2008 increased retail bills
about 17 percent in the first quarter of 2009.
Residential customers using 700 kilowatt-
hours saw their bills go from $102.42 in
December 2008 to $119.80 in January 2009.
By year’s end, while there was an increase in
the energy charge, the same bill was $99.04
due primarily to decreases in the cost of fuel.

In April, the retail fuel surcharge rate com-
ponent was separated into two categories

to more clearly identify the cost differ-
ences between fuel and purchased power.
Chugach filed a general rate case in June
requesting an overall increase of about 1.6
percent on total patronage revenue. This
was the first base rate increase for retail
members since the fall of 2003. The request
came after Chugach completed an updated

cost-of-service study that examined the
cost of providing service to different kinds
of customers and calculated the rates that
each customer class should pay to ensure
rates are equitable. By March 2010 the
Regulatory Commission of Alaska had not
yet approved permanent changes. However,
in October 2009 it did approve the rates on
an interim refundable basis.

The board approved the use of simplified
rate filing (SRF) procedures for adjustments
to base energy and demand rates at its
November meeting. Chugach submitted

its request to implement SRF to the RCA

in December. The purpose of SRF is to
streamline the rate adjustment process
through routine filings that update underly-
ing cost and sales information utilizing
Commission-approved ratemaking method-
ologies, including return requirements. The
intent of this change is to facilitate the rate
adjustment process while reducing cost.

Chugach has requested that the adjust-
ments be completed on a semi-annual
basis, and would continue to submit filings
to the RCA for approval prior to any rate
changes being implemented.

Chugach uses modern technology in planning
for the future.

Anchorage Mayor Dan Sullivan announced the
Energy Watch campaign at a press confer-
ence in September.

Accounting employees verifiying general ledger
entries.
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OUTAGE STATISTICS

GENERATION RESOURCES

Chugach averaged 2.30 outage hours per customer in 2009, lower than the 2.57 hours in 2008. The 5-year
average for customer outage hours increased to 2.39 hours in 2009, up from the 2.36 hours in 2008.

Chugach uses various generation resources to ensure reliable,
affordable power. Chugach owns 530.1 megawatts of installed
capacity at Chugach-owned facilities. The unit ratings shown are
taken at 30 degrees Fahrenheit. Chugach also takes power from
the state-owned Bradley Lake hydroelectric project near Homer
and from Homer Electric Association’s gas turbine at Nikiski. In
2009, 90 percent of the kilowatt-hours Chugach generated came
from natural gas units and the other 10 percent from hydroelectric
resources.

Located on the west side of Cook Inlet near Tyonek; Unit Nos. 1-3 and 5-7
are fueled by natural gas; Unit 8 is a steam turbine.

Units Commissioned Power Rating
(megawatts)

No. 1 1968 19.6
No. 2 1968 19.6
No. 3 1972 64.8
No. 5 1975 68.7
No. 6 1975 79.2
No. 7 1978 80.1
No. 8 1981 53.0
TOTAL 385.00

Bernice Lake

Located near Nikiski on the Kenai Peninsula; units are natural gas combustion
turbines.

Units Commissioned Power Rating
(megawatts)

No. 2 1971 19.0
No. 3 1978 26.0
No. 4 1981 22.5
TOTAL 67.5

Cooper Lake

Located near Cooper Landing on the Kenai Peninsula; units are hydro tur-
bines.

Units Commissioned Power Rating
(megawatts)

No. 1 1960 9.6
No. 2 1960 9.6
TOTAL 19.2

Eklutna

Located along the Knik River and jointly owned with Municipal Light & Power
and Matanuska Electric Association. Chugach’s share is 30 percent, up to an
11.7-megawatt maximum. Units are hydro turbines.

Units Commissioned Power Rating
(megawatts)

No. 1 1955 23.5
No. 2 1955 23.5
TOTAL 47.0

International

Located off International Airport Road in Anchorage; units are natural gas
combustion turbines.

Units Commissioned Power Rating
(megawatts)

No. 1 1964 14.1
No. 2 1965 14.1
No. 3 1969 18.5
TOTAL 46.7
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billion kilowatt-hours.

CoNTACT INFO

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
KPMG LLP

701 West Eighth Avenue, Suite 600
Anchorage, Alaska 99501

CHUGALH

Chugach owns 530.1 megawatts of installed
generation capacity at five power plants.
Chugach operates 2,218 miles of energized
line. Chugach has 533 miles of transmission
line — that includes 128 miles of leased
transmission lines and Chugach’s share

of the jointly-owned Eklutna transmission
line. Chugach also has 916 miles of
overhead distribution line and 769 miles of
underground distribution line.

Chugach set an all-time system peak load
Jan. 7, 2009, when demand hit 489.54
megawatts in the hour ending at 7 p.m.
The temperature at the time at Chugach
headquarters was minus 13 degrees.
Power sales for the year totaled 2.54

The Railbelt

Chugach power flows to nearly three-fourths of
Alaska's population. Chugach serves 81,047
retail service locations in an area extending
from Anchorage to the northern Kenai Peninsula,
and from Whittier on Prince William Sound to
Tyonek on the west side of Cook Inlet. Chugach
provides power for Alaskans from Homer to
Fairbanks through wholesale and economy
energy sales to Homer Electric Association, the
City of Seward, Matanuska Electric Association
and Golden Valley Electric Association. On
occasion, Chugach sells to, or buys energy
from, Municipal Light & Power.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Chugach Electric Association, Inc
Public Relations Department
P.O. Box 196300

Anchorage, Alaska 99519-6300
Tel. (907) 762-4736

Golden Valley Electric Association
] . Homer Electric Association

Matanuska Electric Association
B City of Seward

INVESTOR INFORMATION
Chugach Electric Association, Inc

Chief Financial Officer

P.O. Box 196300

Anchorage, Alaska 99519-6300
Tel. (907) 762-4778



